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Purpose

Provide value to the owner and customer by
providing locally managed water services.

Vision

To be an independent water utility providing
diversity and competition in the Western
Australian water industry.
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Guiding Principles
• Accountability

Values

We are:
• Committed to customer service excellence
• Customer and community focused
• Striving for innovative solutions

• Transparency
• Integrity

• Trust

Aqwest is the trading name of the Bunbury Water
Corporation. As “Your Local Water Supplier”, we
have been providing safe and affordable drinking
water to the Bunbury community since 1906.

WELCOME

Welcome to the Aqwest
2018 Annual Report
The 2018 Annual Report is a review of
Aqwest’s performance for the financial year
ended 30 June 2018.
This report is produced in accordance with the
provisions of the Water Corporations Act 1995
and other relevant legislation, which governs our
operations.

The objective of this report is to provide Aqwest’s
owner, customers, community and stakeholders
with information about Aqwest’s operational and
financial performance for the 2017/18 financial
year.
This report and past annual reports can be found at
www.aqwest.com.au.
For customer enquiries or feedback about our
services, email aqwest@aqwest.com.au.
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It is provided to the Minister for Water the Hon
Dave Kelly MLA and is tabled in the Parliament of
Western Australia.

Highlights
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PLANNING FOR THE FUTURE - CONSTRUCTION OF
THE GLEN IRIS WATER TREATMENT PLANT

Aqwest Manager Water Services
Gary Hallsworth, Bunbury MLA
Don Punch, WA Premier Mark
McGowan MLA, Minister for
Water Dave Kelly MLA and Aqwest
Board Director Hans Dopheide at
the official announcement of the
Glen Iris Water Treatment Plant in
November 2017

Aqwest started its largest capital works project of the last
decade, the construction of a new water treatment plant in
Bunbury’s eastern suburb of Glen Iris. The plant will have
the potential to supply almost half of Bunbury’s average
water consumption demand. Due to the impacts of climate
change, the risk of increasing salinity levels threatens water
quality. Water extraction and treatment at Glen Iris will
replace current water abstraction from the sensitive coastal
freshwater-seawater interface area. Benefits will also be
obtained from lower production costs and by reducing
the need for the expensive refurbishment of Aqwest’s
current coastal treatment plants, which will ultimately be
decommissioned.

OVERVIEW
WATER CONSERVATION
Aqwest’s residential customers have continued to
reduce their water use against a target of <280 kL.
Water consumption dropped from 261 kL in 2016
to 247 kL in 2017 and to 245 kL in 2018.

WATER QUALITY
Aqwest once again complied with the Australian
Drinking Water Guidelines and achieved 100%
microbiological compliance.

During the year we:
Extracted 6.397
gigalitres (GL) of
groundwater

Delivered drinking
water to 17,356
customers

Achieved a
profit before
income tax of
$3.983 million

Returned to
Government $3.368
million in dividend
and taxation
payments

Invested $0.923
million in water
mains and
distribution
infrastructure

 Invested $0.904
million in the
maintenance
and renewal of
existing reservoirs,
treatment plants
and corporate assets

Collected
revenue of
$14.990 million

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION


Completed the
earthworks and
procurement process
for a new $15 million
water treatment plant
in the Bunbury suburb
of Glen Iris

Employed 39
local people
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Aqwest is committed to providing sustainable, high
quality drinking water that consistently meets or
exceeds its customers’ expectations. Every year,
Aqwest invites its customers to give their feedback
in a survey. The latest survey showed that Aqwest
had maintained its overall satisfaction rating, with a
result of 85.3 per cent.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Financial performance for 2017/18 was acceptable
with total revenue below budget by 9.2 per cent.
Total expenses were approximately 10.1 per cent
below budget.

• Budgeted Operating Profit After Tax and
Dividend = $0.819 million

• Actual Operating Profit After Tax and Dividend =
$0.719 million

• A full analysis is shown within the financial notes
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of this Annual Report

Financial performance is monitored continuously
and the Board is provided with detailed monthly
reports. Both the Audit Committee and Board
of Directors considered formal quarterly budget
reviews. The Minister was provided with a quarterly
report for each of the first three quarters of the
financial year as required by the Water Corporations
Act 1995.

credit to the water conservation practices adopted
by Aqwest customers (Note 1GL = 1 gigalitre =
1,000,000,000 litres).

WATER PRICING
In 2017/18, consumption and supply charges
increased by 1.75 per cent.
The Board provided pensioners and seniors with
consumption and supply fee rebates of $0.712
million in 2017/18.
The Economic Regulation Authority (ERA) completed
an inquiry into the efficient costs and tariffs of the
Water Corporation, Aqwest and Busselton Water
during the financial year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Board remains committed to providing an
environment that allows all employees with the
opportunity to thrive. The staff services program
continues to provide tangible benefits.

Annual water production has remained at between
6GL and 7GL since the early 1980s. As customer
numbers have doubled over this time, this is a

Attendance at industry conferences including
VicWater17 and OzWater18 is actively encouraged.
Such conferences provide relevant staff and

OVERVIEW

Directors with the opportunity to expand their
knowledge of the Australian water industry, thereby
delivering better outcomes to Aqwest.

Aqwest is represented on the Advisory Committee
for the Purity of Water (ACPOW) quarterly meetings
as convened by the Department of Health.

Overall the results are considered significantly above
average and reflect the ongoing excellent efforts
and commitment of all staff.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

OPERATIONAL AUDIT AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT REVIEW

CLOSING

WATER QUALITY
Aqwest strives to provide drinking water that meets
and exceeds the relevant Australian Drinking Water
Guidelines. Aqwest acknowledges the Department
of Health as the regulator of drinking water
quality in Western Australia. Aqwest has in place a
highly experienced Water Quality Committee and
appreciates the external expertise brought to this
forum by the WA Department of Health, GHD and
the City of Bunbury.

The 2017 Operational Audit and Asset Management
Review was completed by the Paxon Group in late
2017. It covered the period 1 October 2013 to
30 September 2017 inclusive. The results were as
follows:

a) Asset Management System
The Review found that Aqwest has a very effective
Asset Management System. Forty eight (48) months
until the next review has been maintained.

I have again greatly appreciated the support of all
Board Directors, managers and staff throughout
the financial year. I would again like to acknowledge
and thank everyone at Aqwest who has made a
commitment outside of their normal working hours
to ensure this 24/7 business provides continuous
excellence in customer services. Also, to those
staff who make an effort in their own time and
sometimes at their own expense to make Aqwest a
better place to work – thank you.

b) Operational Audit
The results were somewhat disappointing despite
the fact that the majority of recommendations
are considered minor in nature. This was the first
Operational Audit since the introduction of the
Water Services Act 2012 and Water Corporations Act
1995. The Economic Regulation Authority reduced
the period covered by the next audit from forty
eight (48) months to thirty six (36) months.

Brad Bevis
Chief Executive Officer
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The ongoing communication and assistance
provided by key stakeholders including the Minister
for Water, Water Corporation, Busselton Water,
Economic Regulation Authority, Department of
Water and Environmental Regulation, RiskCover,
Department of Health, City of Bunbury and Office
of the Auditor General results in a stronger water
industry in Western Australia. Aqwest places a high
value on these links.

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
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Chairman’s Report
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

GLEN IRIS WATER TREATMENT PLANT

The Board actively embraces the practice of good
corporate governance including the annual review
of the Board Charter. The Board is acutely aware
of its risk management responsibilities and again
conducted a Special Workshop of the Board
to consider Board level risks. Board Directors
actively participate in the Risk Management, Audit
Committee and any Board appointed committee
formed to address specific short term issue(s). Board
Directors attend relevant water industry forums
including OzWater and VicWater to increase their
overall knowledge of the Australian water industry.
A Strategic Planning Workshop involving all
Directors was held in November 2017.

Approval to construct the Glen Iris Water
Treatment Plant at a total cost of $15 million was
received from the State Government in late May
2017 and formally announced in October 2017.
Earthworks have been completed and construction
is scheduled to be complete by 30th June 2019.
Once constructed the Plant will have a nominal
capacity of 10 ML per day. Due to the impacts of
climate change, the risk of increasing salinity levels
threatens water quality. Water extraction and
treatment at Glen Iris will replace current water
abstraction from the sensitive coastal freshwaterseawater interface area. Benefits will also be
obtained from lower per kilolitre production costs
and expensive refurbishment to current coastal
treatment plants will be avoided with these plants
ultimately being decommissioned.

The membership of the Board changed as follows
during the 2017/18 financial year;

2018 CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

• The Board Chairman, Ms Judy Jones, resigned
to move interstate and was replaced for the
balance of her term by Dr Wendy Giles

• Director Mr Edwin Abdo resigned due to ill
health and was replaced by Mrs Patricia Scaffidi

• Director Mr John Barratt departed the Board
at the expiry of his term and was replaced by
Mr Stan Liaros who was also appointed as the
Board Chairman

The Board appoints an independent third party to
conduct an annual customer satisfaction survey.
The Survey indicates that overall satisfaction with
Aqwest remains similar to the prior 2017 year at
85.3 per cent. Customer feedback indicates that the
Board needs to continue to work hard in regards
to informing customers about future planning and
water conservation initiatives.
The percentage of customers that believe Aqwest
charges fairly fell in the last year from 61.6 per cent
to 54.6 per cent.

OVERVIEW

2017 AQWEST ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT

SAFETY

Negotiations over the Aqwest Enterprise Agreement
2017 were finalised in late 2017 after extensive
consultation by the negotiating committee, which
included the Australian Manufacturing Workers’
Union (AMWU) as a representative for staff. The
Agreement has a three (3) year term.

Aqwest holds a WorkSafe Platinum Certificate of
Achievement, which is the highest level WorkSafe
safety award in Western Australia.

The Board has six (6) key result areas –
sustainability, people, customer service, owner,
assets and community/stakeholders. Objectives and
performance indicators are reviewed during the
financial year. Improvements and changes made are
reflected in the Statement of Corporate Intent and
Strategic Development Plan.

NATIONAL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR
URBAN WATER UTILITIES 2016/17
The National Performance Report for urban water
utilities for 2016/17 was released in March 2018.
The report is prepared by the Bureau of
Meteorology and compares the performance of
water utilities providing urban water services to
more than 20 million people across Australia.
Aqwest compares well against similar size water
utilities throughout Australia.

Thank you to former Board Chairman Judy Jones
and outgoing Directors Edwin Abdo and John
Barratt for their services to the Board. Thank you to
my fellow Directors Rob Nicholson, Hans Dopheide,
Patricia Scaffidi, Wendy Giles and Neville Eastman,
and Executive Staff and all staff for their efforts and
commitment during 2017/18. Aqwest looks forward
to continuing to provide a high quality reliable water
supply for many years to come.

Stan Liaros
Chairman
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STRATEGIC PLANNING

CLOSING
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The Aqwest Board: Top: Hans
Dopheide, Neville Eastman, Rob
Nicholson. Seated: Wendy Giles,
Stan Liaros and Patricia Scaffidi.

OVERVIEW

MR STAN LIAROS
(CHAIRMAN)
Bunbury businessman Stan Liaros is
the Chief Executive Officer of the
Apprentice and Traineeship Company
and the former Chairman of Aqwest,
the South West Development
Commission and the South West
Academy of Sport. He was also the
Senior Vice President of the South
West Football League.

MR NEVILLE EASTMAN

MRS PATRICIA SCAFFIDI

Neville Eastman is a former
Chartered Accountant and partner
of Eastman & Co Accountants,
which was formed in 1969. He is a
third generation resident of Bunbury
and has a passionate interest in
the wellbeing of the city and its
residents. Neville was previously
a member of the Bunbury Port
Authority for 10 years.

Patricia Scaffidi is a retired Certified
Practicing Accountant and has
worked in a farming and property
development business in Donnybrook
and as the Financial Lead on business
development and acquisition teams
for Cristal Inorganic Chemicals and as
the Chief Financial Officer for Bemax
Mining Group. She is the Company
Secretary for GP Down South.

MR ROB NICHOLSON

MR HANS DOPHEIDE

DR WENDY GILES

Rob Nicholson is an architect who
was previously a member of the
Bunbury Water Board from 1996 to
2001. As a Bunbury resident since
the 1980s, he has had a particular
interest in the efficient running of
Aqwest and the development of
contemporary water policy. He is also
keen to maintain the current high
water quality standards.

Hans Dopheide has extensive
experience in the mining and electricity
utility sectors. He has previously worked
for South32, BHP Billiton, Verve Energy
and Western Power. He has a wealth of
experience in operations, maintenance,
construction, developing power plants
and working with government. He has
a particular interest in conservation and
has been a resident of Bunbury
since 2008.

Wendy Giles is the former
Associate Dean of Edith Cowan
University in Bunbury and a former
Bunbury City Councillor. She is
a part time tutor at the Bunbury
Regional Prison and an online
lecturer in science for Charles
Darwin University.
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The Aqwest Board

Corporate
Structure
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Aqwest is owned by the Western Australian
Government and accountable to the Minister for
Water; Fisheries; Forestry; Innovation and ICT;
Science the Hon David Kelly MLA, for the delivery of
our services.
The Board responds to the Minister for Water and
has the legislative authority to perform the functions
of the organisation. It is ultimately responsible for
legal compliance, corporate governance and risk
management. The Board also provides strategic
direction and guidance to the CEO and Executive
Management.
The CEO is appointed by the Board of Directors, with
the concurrence of the Minister for Water.
Our organisational structure consists of two streams,
Water Services and Corporate Services. Each is
headed by an Executive Manager who reports
directly to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO).
Aqwest employs 39 team members and engages
external support and expertise as required.

OVERVIEW

MINISTER FOR WATER
Hon Dave Kelly MLA

CHAIRMAN
Stan Liaros

BOARD

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

MANAGER WATER SERVICES

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MANAGER CORPORATE SERVICES

Gary Hallsworth

Brad Bevis

Joe Smith (Chief Finance Officer)

Operations and Maintenance
Capital Works
Asset Management
Water Quality
Safety Management
Developer Services
Business Continuity

• Risk Management
• Business Development

Financial Services
Customer Service
Human Resources
Information, Communication and
Technology
• Public Relations
• Corporate Planning and Reporting
•
•
•
•
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Neville Eastman, Rob Nicholson, Hans Dopheide,
Wendy Giles, Patricia Scaffidi

PERFORMANCE

Performance against strategic Direction
Aqwest’s four (4) key directions in the Statement of Corporate Intent for 2017/18 were as follows:
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Maintain an ongoing focus
on our core business of
providing sustainable high
quality water services

Performance indicators substantively
met within the six (6) Key Result
Areas (KRAs) of Sustainability, People,
Customer Service, Owner, Operations
and Community/Stakeholders

Implement the
approved Glen Iris
Water Treatment
Plant business case

Earthworks
complete.
Procurement
underway

X

Implement the
approved Dalyellup
water supply
business case

No longer considered to be a specific
objective. In the future, Aqwest has a
more general intention to implement
any approved plan to expand the
provision of Aqwest water supplies

Respond to
any demand to
provide bulk
water services

Joint exercise to test infrastructure
capability carried out by Aqwest and
the Water Corporation in February
2018. No demand during the financial
year for bulk water service

PERFORMANCE

Corporate Outcomes

Aqwest’s corporate performance against financial outcomes and targets detailed in its 2017/18 Statement of Corporate Intent (SCI):
2017/18 Actual

Financial Outcomes

$’000s

$’000s

Total Operating Revenue (a)

16,357

14,766

9,630

8,438

Less: Direct Operating Expenses (b)
Less: Depreciation

2,558

2,553

Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT)

4,169

3,775

16

16

Less: Interest Expense
Add: Developer Contributions

151

224

Operating Profit Before Tax

4,304

3,983

Less: Income Tax Expense

1,571

1,392

Less: Dividend

1,914

1,898

819

693

10,632

3,431

Borrowings taken (repaid)

581

(60)

Net debt

475

0

Net Accruals to Government

$000s

$000s

Income Tax Equivalent

1,571

1,392

70

79

Operating Profit After Tax and Dividend
Capital expenditure (c)

Local Government Rate Equivalent
Land Tax

35

29

Dividend

1,914

1,983

Operating Subsidy

(666)

(703)

Net Accrual to Government

2,924

2,780

%

%

Return on Assets

8.1

8.7

Net Debt to Equity

0.5

0.0

Financial Performance Measures

(a) Water consumption ended 10 per cent below budget. The
budget was based on historical averages, however proved to
be set too high. Actual reduction in consumption was 2 per
cent on the previous year.
(b) Operating expenses ended 13 per cent below budget. This
was mainly due to wages ending 6 per cent under budget and
demand-driven operational works not meeting the budgeted
demand.
(c) The budget for 2017/18 included $7.5 million for the
construction of the Glen Iris Water Treatment Plant. This
project has been deferred into the new financial year, with
$1.2 million being spent on completing the earthworks for the
site during the year.
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2017/18 Target
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PERFORMANCE

PERFORMANCE

PROFITABILITY
Aqwest achieved an operating profit before tax of $3.983 million in 2017/18.
There was a reduction in profit compared to the previous year’s achievement of $4.723
million. This was mainly influenced by a reduction in water sales.

INVESTING IN INFRASTRUCTURE

RETURNS TO THE STATE

Aqwest’s capital investment program benefits the
community and industry partners, which assists in
construction, maintenance and operations works. A

Aqwest is required by the Australian Tax Office to lodge
an income tax return and pay income tax equivalents to

tax will be paid for the 2017/18 year.
million

capital investment program was
delivered in 2017/2018.

million in

A final dividend of $1.898 million was paid in
December 2017 for the year ending 30 June 2017.
Aqwest received operating subsidies from the State
Government of $0.703 million for the 2017/18 year.
Net Accrual to Government (NATG) is the total of tax,
dividend, land tax and local government rate equivalent
payments to Government, offset by the operating
subsidy received from Government.

In 2017/18 Aqwest delivered a
DEBT AND BORROWINGS
The capital investment program over recent years
has been funded from capital reserves and debt
levels have remained low. There

were no
additional borrowings in 2017/18.

$2.780

million

Net Accrual to Government

SUPPORTING THE REGION

¾

Aqwest’s profit is
returned to the
State Government
as a dividend,
which contributes
to a range of
programs and
initiatives to benefit the Western
Australian community.
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$3.431

the State Government. In total $1.392

PERFORMANCE

Commitment: Permanence

Sustainability

We are committed to ensuring the sustainable
long-term provision of potable water
services. This will be achieved by acting in
an environmentally, socially and financially
responsible way.
Over the last thirty (30) years our extraction of
water from the Yarragadee aquifer has remained
relatively constant despite a significant rise in
customer numbers.

Performance indicators are used to measure the following corporate objectives:
• Manage the long-term viability of the water resource
• Act in an environmentally responsible way

Key environmental indicators are now captured
and reviewed with processes being implemented
where possible to influence these.

• Stay committed to State and Federal Government sustainability initiatives
• Continue to invest in demand management and water conservation initiatives
• Seek to secure and maintain access to quality water resources
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• Manage aquifer extraction regimes to preserve long term supply

Performance Indicator

Unit

S1. Quantity of water produced within licensed allocation

GL

S2. Real water losses

2017/18
Target

2017/18
Actual

Historical
Outcome

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

< 7.6

6.4

3

6.5

6.7

6.8

6.7

L / property / day

< 115

108

3

104

95

106

111

S3. Average annual residential water supplied

kL / property

< 280

245

3

247

261

265

267

S4. Operating cost of water supplied

% increase / kL /
property

< 2.0

(2.3)

3

2.3

7.2

(11.7)

27.9

S5. Reduction in net greenhouse gas emissions per annum

% reduction in net
tonnes CO2-e
/ 1,000 properties

2.0

6.7

3

4.6

3.7

2.6

6.5

PERFORMANCE

Commitment: Excellence

Customer Service

We take pride in providing personalised customer
service. The Customer Services Code of Conduct
prescribes a set of service standards and
requests.

Performance indicators are used to measure the following corporate objectives:
• Achieve excellence in the provision of service to customers
• Meet all requirements of the Operating Licence and Customer Services Code of Conduct
• Provide water quality in accordance with the Australian Drinking Water Guidelines (ADWG)
• Plan and ultimately implement smart metering

The provision of safe drinking water is one of
the most fundamental requirements for ensuring
community health. As such, a significant body of
regulation exists which ensures that the public
can have confidence that its water is consistently
and readily available and safe to drink.
We are committed to complying with all relevant
legislation, regulation and standards.

• Plan and implement a revised customer satisfaction assessment regime.

Performance Indicator

Unit

CS1.

Number of zones where microbiological compliance was
achieved

Out of our seven zones

CS2.

Water quality complaints

CS3.

2017/18
Actual

Historical
Outcome

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

7/7

7/7

3

7/7

7/7

7/7

7/7

per year, per 1,000
properties

< 2.00

0.52

3

1.45

0.29

0.12

0.03

Water service complaints (a)

per year, per 1,000
properties

< 0.80

0.98

x

0.35

0.23

0.20

0.20

CS4.

Billing and account complaints

per year, per 1,000
properties

< 2.00

0.17

3

1.95

0.47

0.90

0.80

CS5.

Percentage of connections meeting pressure and flow
requirements (b)

%

100.00

99.98

x

99.9

100.0

99.98

n/a

CS6.

Percentage of customer complaints resolved in less than
15 business days

%

100.00

100.00

3

97.0

94.0

93.0

n/a

(a) Seventeen (17) complaints were received. Target would have been met at thirteen (13) complaints.
(b) Four (4) out of 17,356 connections did not meet pressure and flow requirements.
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2017/18
Target

PERFORMANCE

Commitment: Efficiency

Operations

We are planning for the future by ensuring
that the capacity of infrastructure is
always sufficient to meet demand. We are
continually monitoring and reporting on
the performance of operations and have
put in place Strategic Asset and Ten (10)
Year Finance plans.

Performance indicators are used to measure the following corporate objectives:
• Ensure that facility location, system capacity and capability are always sufficient to meet future demand

Significant investments in human,
information and physical resources are
included in the Ten (10) Year Finance Plan.

• Ensure compliance with all other relevant Regulations and Statutory requirements
• Keep abreast of emerging water treatment technology and continue to invest in water production,
treatment and distribution infrastructure
• Ensure that sufficient funds are available to fund the replacement of assets
• Maintain an effective risk management system

Performance Indicator

Unit

2017/18
Actual

Historical
Outcome

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

per 1000 properties

< 250

162

3

235

146

20

211

OP2. Average duration of an unplanned interruption

minutes

< 60.0

33

3

48.8

61.0

43.7

47.5

OP3. Energy consumption

kWh/kL

< 0.45

0.449

3

0.45

0.45

0.45

0.48

per km of water main

> 40

44.2

3

44.4

43.8

43.9

43.3

per 100km of water main

< 20

9.4

3

17.5

13.7

12.5

10.4

%

> 70.0

74.1

3

70.1

69.0

72.0

75.0

% increase per ML
produced

< 2.00

(0.04)

3

5.5

7.4

6.8

(16.0)

OP1. Average frequency of an unplanned interruption
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2017/18
Target

OP4. Properties served
OP5. Water main breaks
OP6. Off peak energy use
OP7. Operating cost of water produced

PERFORMANCE

People

Commitment: Development,
Equity & Safety

We recognise that our people are our most
important asset. The key to sustainable business
is to invest in training, development and safety.

Performance indicators are used to measure the following corporate objectives:
• Maintain Strategic Workforce Plan

A comprehensive Early Intervention Program is
conducted, which includes annual skin cancer
screening, flu shots, weekly physiotherapy
clinics, dietary advice and an employee
assistance program.

• Maintain an Equal Employment Opportunity & Diversity Plan
• Improve capabilities of both employees and systems to support growth opportunities
• Ensure that we maintain an effective and efficient organisation
• Develop a multi skilled and flexible workforce through effective training and mentoring
programs

Comprehensive systems, policies and
procedures have been developed which ensure
all staff are treated equitably and operate within
a safe working environment.

• Maintain a safe working environment and culture
• Provide a work environment where employees have the opportunity to thrive

2017/18
Target

2017/18
Actual

Historical

Performance Indicator

Unit

P1. Staff Attitudinal Survey Completed

Yes/No

Yes

Yes

3

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

P2. Lost Time Injury (LTI) Frequency Rate (a)

LTIs/1 million man hours
worked

0.0

33.6

x

0.0

31.4

32.4

31.2

P3. Average time lost per injury (a)

days

< 2.0

12.5

x

0.0

7.5

59.0

40.0

a) Two injuries resulting in lost time occurred during the financial year.

Outcome

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14
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• Engage the necessary expertise to undertake staff profiling, early intervention and
maintain staff services programs
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PERFORMANCE

Commitment: Value

We are committed to delivering value for
our owner.

Owner

We plan to achieve this through the
continued execution of our strategy
focused on creating value from our assets,
and our continued focus on evaluating
various business development initiatives.
We consider that the long term financial
viability of the business is of paramount
importance.

Performance indicators are used to measure the following corporate objectives:
• Ensure the long term financial viability of the business
• Ensure compliance with the Economic Regulation Authority Operating Licence requirements
• Adhere to Corporate Governance Principles
• Proactively investigate opportunities to add value to the business

Unit

2017/18
Actual

Historical
Outcome

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

SV1. Return on assets

%

7.5

8.7

3

10.1

11.6

9.4

5.0

SV2. Per cent of fixed costs recouped by supply fee

%

45.0

57.4

3

58.6

58.0

52.0

47.0

SV3. Net debt to equity ratio

%

< 10.0

0.0

3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
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Performance Indicator

2017/18
Target

PERFORMANCE

10-Year Financial Summary
Financial Outcomes
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Total Revenue

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

14,990

15,861

16,136

14,217

11,059

9,233

9,460

9,046

9,492

9,858

Operating Subsidy

703

703

811

480

-

-

-

-

-

-

Developer Contributions

224

658

727

993

428

213

446

358

598

733

Operating Costs

8,438

8,616

8,343

7,951

7,331

8,242

6,152

6,516

5,634

6,229

Depreciation

2,553

2,522

2,718

2,684

2,672

2,997

3,059

2,654

2,277

2,015

11,007

11,138

11,061

10,635

10,003

11,239

9,211

9,170

7,911

8,244

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax

3,983

4,723

5,075

3,582

1,057

(2,005)

249

(124)

1,580

1,613

Income Tax

1,392

1,794

1,935

1,472

696

-

380

391

550

656

Dividend

1,898

1,983

1,281

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Capital Expenditure

3,431

3,417

2,588

2,738

3,276

3,928

3,936

3,427

6,732

3,174

335

394

452

507

561

612

-

-

-

-

Total Expenses

Total Debt

PERFORMANCE

Operating Outcomes

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

(‘000s)

Water production (gigalitres)

6.39

6.52

6.66

6.81

6.70

6.33

6.47

6.49

6.72

6.67

Residential consumption (gigalitres)

3.88

3.90

4.07

4.09

4.08

3.83

3.81

3.98

4.05

4.12

Non-residential consumption (gigalitres)

1.51

1.48

1.66

1.63

1.61

1.58

1.71

1.70

1.70

1.85

Total water consumption (gigalitres)

5.39

5.38

5.73

5.72

5.69

5.41

5.52

5.68

5.75

5.97

15,831

15,758

15,610

15,442

15,270

15,151

14,939

14,798

14,619

n/a

Non-residential services

1,525

1,515

1,503

1,475

1,449

1,444

1,419

1,390

1,359

n/a

Total properties served

17,356

17,273

17,113

16,917

16,719

16,595

16,358

16,188

15,978

15,828

0.5

0.9

1.2

1.3

0.6

1.4

1.1

1.3

0.9

3.1

Residential services

Growth in properties served (per cent)
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10-Year Operating Statistics
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OPERATIONS

Capital Works Program
ASSET MANAGEMENT

MAINS AND VALVE REPLACEMENT

Aqwest produces a Strategic Asset Plan (SAP) each
year which provides the forward estimates for
asset related expenditure over the next ten (10)
years. An Asset Risk and Criticality rating system is
incorporated into the SAP and used to determine
expenditure priorities based on the risk each asset
poses to the organisation as well as its relative
criticality to the supply of drinking water.

Aqwest continued to invest in the ongoing renewal
of water mains and valves. It operates a water
supply network which consists of 387km of water
mains controlled by around 1300 valves.

STRATEGIC ASSET PLAN (SAP)
Short term (1 to 4 years) projects identified in the
SAP are:
• Water treatment plant construction
• Mains, valve and service replacements
• Mains extensions and new services
• Reservoir refurbishments
• Upgrade of control systems
• Investigation of production bore improvements
and subsequent increased production
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The programs for renewing these assets are driven
from the Asset Management system. Continued
investment in this area aims to improve customer
outage times and frequency by reducing mains
failure and improving Aqwest’s ability to manage
failures when they do occur, by having properly
functioning valves to shut down failed sections of
the network.
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OPERATIONS
GLEN IRIS WATER TREATMENT PLANT
Aqwest received approval from the Minister for Water
and the WA Treasury to proceed with the construction
of a new water treatment plant at Glen Iris located in
the eastern zone of the Aqwest operating licence area.
The plant will meet the future water supply needs of
Greater Bunbury, securing a sustainable water supply
for Aqwest’s 35,000 customers and will be capable of
producing 10 megalitres of drinking water per day.
Water for the Bunbury area is currently drawn from
several bores along the coast where, due to the
impacts of climate change, the risk of increasing salinity
levels threatens water quality.
The new water treatment plant will extract water from
a higher quality inland groundwater bore, creating
greater water production cost efficiencies and
delivering benefits to customers.

Acting Water Quality Supervisor
Josh Pickering shows the Glen Iris
Water Treatment Plant operations
room to Bunbury MLA Don Punch,
Minister for Water Dave Kelly MLA,
Board Director Hans Dopheide,
Aqwest Manager Water Services
Gary Hallsworth and Premier Mark
McGowan MLA.

• Earth works and drainage construction has been
completed ahead of winter. The site was low lying
with extensive clay deposits that required removal.
The site is now backfilled and compacted ready for
the construction phase to begin in late 2018
• The procurement process for the supply of filters and
design and construction services is well advanced
• The existing production bore has been redeveloped
and the water quality has been retested and is ready
for equipping and to supply the new plant in 2019
• A power upgrade to the site from the Western
Power network is in progress
The plant is forecast to start production in late 2019
and will have the potential to supply almost half of
Bunbury’s average water consumption demand.
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The project has reached several significant milestones
during the 2017/2018 financial year:

OPERATIONS

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management
The purpose of Aqwest’s Occupational Safety
and Health Policy is to maintain a safe working
environment and culture.
Aqwest’s commitment to occupational safety and
health resulted in the following actions this year:
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• Aqwest continued to hold monthly Safety
Committee meetings which provide a
consultative forum to effectively address health
and safety matters. The Safety Committee is
chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and
membership includes the executive staff, health
and safety representatives and committee
advisers
• Monthly departmental safety meetings were held
by the Administration Safety Committee and
the Operations Safety Committee, supported by
three health and safety representatives from the
Administration, Water Distribution and Water
Treatment departments
• Continuous improvement of the Safe Job
Planning initiative which included a Safe Job
Planning folder containing Safe Work Method
Statements (SWMS) for high risk work carried
out by Aqwest
• Improving the use of Risk Wizard for managing
the Occupational Safety and Health risk register

• 76 per cent achievement of Aqwest’s Safety
Incentive Scheme performance indicators
• Completion of all recommendations from the
three-yearly WorkSafe WA – WorkSafe Plan
Audit, carried out in 2016
Aqwest recorded two Lost Time Injuries for the
2017/2018 year. Prior to this Aqwest achieved 23
months Lost Time Injury free to November 2017.

In the last year, Aqwest has complied with the
injury management requirements of the Workers
Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981.
Performance against the targets outlined in the
Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular 2018-03:
Code of Practice: Occupational Safety and Health
in the Western Australian Public Sector is as
follows:

Indicator

Target

Results
2015/16

Results
2016/17

Results
2017/18

Number of fatalities

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

Lost time injury / disease (LTI/D)
incidence rate

Zero (0) or 10 per cent
improvement on the
previous three years

0%

0%

33.63%

Lost time injury and disease severity
rate

Zero (0) or 10 per cent
improvement on the
previous three years

0%

0%

0%

Percentage of injured workers
returned to work within: (i) 13
weeks and (ii) 26 weeks

Greater than or equal to
80 per cent return to work
within 26 weeks

(i) 100%
(ii) 100%

(i) 100%
(ii) 100%

(i) 100%
(ii) 100%

100%

100%

100%

Percentage of managers and
supervisors trained in Occupational
Safety, Health and Injury
Management responsibilities

Greater than or
equal to 80 per cent

OPERATIONS

Customer Complaints
These complaints are managed in Aqwest’s
RiskWizard database, which captures the source,
category and nature of the customer complaint
and the outcome, remedy/solution and status.
A complaint is delivered first to the Chief
Executive Officer, who reviews it then allocates
it to the appropriate member of staff to manage.
Aqwest received 87 complaints this year,
compared to 89 last year. This included nine
water quality complaints, three billing and
account complaints, 17 water service complaints
and 58 ‘other’ complaints.
Based on the number of connected properties,
the 87 complaints this year equates to 5.0
complaints per 1,000 properties.

The following three performance indicators for complaints were targeted (per 1,000 properties, per year).
These performance indicators were monitored at monthly Board meetings.
2017/18 Target

2017/18 Result

CS2. Water quality complaints (per 1,000 properties)

<2.00

0.52

CS3. Water service complaints (per 1,000 properties)

<0.80

0.98

CS4. Billing and accounts complaints (per 1,000 properties)

<2.00

0.17

Aqwest also endeavours to work with customers to resolve each complaint within 15 business days. The
following performance indicator is regularly monitored:
CS6. Percentage of customer complaints resolved in less than 15 business
days

During the year, Aqwest’s Complaints Policy was
reviewed and relevant staff undertook complaints
management training. Customers are entitled to
have their complaints investigated and resolved

2017/18 Target

2017/18 Result

100.0

100.00

by the Energy and Water Ombudsman. This year,
two complaints were referred, of which one was
satisfactorily resolved between the customer and
Aqwest and one was closed in favour of Aqwest.
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Aqwest receives customer complaints by
telephone, in writing, by email and in person.

In Our Community

“Slow the flow, save H20” stickers were created to
promote water efficiency tips and how to monitor
water use to help detect hidden leaks. The stickers
were given out to customers to stick on their
wheelie bins as a visual reminder.
Once again the popular Aqwest Photography
Competition was held to raise awareness of water
conservation among school students through the
theme “Water Art”. Students from throughout the
Greater Bunbury region submitted 280 photographs
which were judged by professional photographers.
Prizes were awarded to 12 years and under and 13
to 17 years categories with the top photos appearing
in the 2018 Aqwest calendar. The calendar is
distributed to entrants and participating schools and
available free to customers.
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Aqwest continued its promotion to customers by
highlighting messages in its invoices, including what
an easy to access meter should look like, Register for
BPay View and Register for E-Billing.

WATER CONSERVATION
Aqwest urged people to “Play Your Part, Be Water
Smart” by launching stickers encouraging people to
conserve water by reporting leaking taps and toilets.
The stickers were placed in City of Bunbury toilets and
changerooms and in school toilets.
Aqwest Chairman Stan Liaros and City of Bunbury
Mayor Gary Brennan launched the stickers at the newly
upgraded Koombana Beach Waterfront.
The stickers had a number of slogans including: “Stop
the drop”, “Slow the flow, save H20” and “A dripping tap
can waste up to 20,000 litres a year”.

Average residential water consumption was 245
kilolitres per household during the year, which was
below the Aqwest target of 280 kilolitres.

SPONSORSHIP
E-BILLING CAMPAIGN
Customers were encouraged to swap paper bills for
email bills or BPay View and go into a draw to win cash
prizes, just by registering for E-Billing. Aqwest asked
people to not only be waterwise, but to do their bit to
use less paper and be a tree saver.
The campaign resulted in hundreds of customers
switching to paperless bills.

A number of community groups applied for
sponsorship in 2017/18, receiving grants from a
funding pool of $15,000.
Sponsorship is open to organisations which are
based in the region served by Aqwest, provide a
community service, an educational, social, cultural
or environmental activity, are managed by a
community based committee, are not for profit and
are constituted or incorporated.

OPERATIONS
REHYDRATION STATION
The Aqwest Rehydration Station was used for many
community events during summer.

ontap

The station is available for use by not-for-profit
organisations, charities and sporting groups located
in the Aqwest water licence area.

WATERING ROSTER

LAST DIGIT
SCHEME WATER USERS'
OF HOUSE
WATERING DAYS
NUMBER*

In 2017/18 it was used by:

1

Wednesday and Saturday

2

Thursday and Sunday

• Skyfest Australia Day Celebrations, City of
Bunbury

3

Friday and Monday

4

Saturday and Tuesday

5

Sunday and Wednesday

6

Monday and Thursday

7

Tuesday and Friday

8

Wednesday and Saturday

• Surf to Surf Fun Run, City of Bunbury Surf
Lifesaving Club

9

Thursday and Sunday

0

Friday and Monday

No sprinkler or reticulation use on any
day between 9am-6pm.
The two day restriction does not apply
to bore users.
The 9am-6pm ban applies to all users.

• Bed Race, St John Ambulance
• Anzac Day, Bunbury RSL Club
• Cross Country Athletics Carnival, Bunbury
Catholic College
• Charity Dog Walk, RSPCA

WATER WEEK
Aqwest highlighted the importance of water
conservation and choosing water saving appliances
by giving away a water wise washing machine
during National Water Week in October. As part
of an education campaign about the importance
of reading meters to help detect hidden leaks,
entrants were asked in include their latest reading
on their entry coupon.
Acting Chairman Neville Eastman presented
Colleen Seymour from Bunbury with the front
loading washing machine and Ros Piggott from
Bunbury with the second prize of a 41 litre esky.
The competition attracted 263 entries and it was
the seventh time Aqwest has given away a washing
machine.

• Bunbury Runners Club
Aqwest provides glass water bottles for local
restaurants, cafes and function centres for free.
The water bottles are available from the Aqwest
reception.

PHOTOGRAPHY COMPETITION
The winners of this year’s Aqwest
Photography Competition have been
announced, after judges declared the
decision “a tough task”.

12 Years and Under:

3rd: Bryce Kramer

Aqwest Chief Executive Officer Brad Bevis
said the aim of the competition was to raise
awareness of the importance of conserving
water.

Finalists: Ashton Branchi, Victoria
Grinter, Jaslyn Normington and Mia
Burgess.

COMMUNICATIONS

This year’s theme was once again “Water
Art” and judges looked for creative
interpretations and thinking outside of the
box.

THE WINNERS WERE:

The winners received prize money for
themselves and their schools and their
photographs will be included in the popular
Aqwest calendar.

“Water is a precious resource and through
this competition we are able to educate
students about the importance of saving
water in a fun, creative way,” Mr Bevis said.

1st: Victoria Grinter
2nd: Mia Burgess
4th: Gabrielle Jackson

13-17 Years:

Aqwest keeps customers up to date about its
activities with the On Tap newsletter published
every four months, through media releases and
with weekly Facebook posts. This ensures there
are a number of mediums used to reach as many
people
in the community as possible.
CONTACT AQWEST

Bunbury professional photographers, Jon
Gellweiler from The South Western Times
and Sarah Henderson from Henderson
Photographics, praised the level of creativity
of this year’s entries.

“The standard for such a young age
was overwhelming and the creativity
and diversity of the subject matter was
astounding,” Mr Gellweiler said. “The future
of photography is in good hands.”

“This is an important audience as these
students are the future and will determine
how resources such as water are used.

“This has become a popular competition
and we continue to be amazed at the high
standard of photography and thought that
has gone into the work.”

1st: Lily Murphy

2nd: Luke Commins

3rd: Kandice Miller

4th: Jowell Villafuerte

Finalists: Megan Jackson, Oakley
Hands, Abbey Burgess and Abby
Coulson.

Board Prizes: Amelia Kramer and
Tyson Giles.

OUR PURPOSE: Provide value to the owner and customer by providing locally managed water services.
OUR VISION: To be an independent water utility providing diversity and competition in the Western Australian water industry.
5 MacKinnon Way, Bunbury WA 6230
P: (08) 9780 9500 E: aqwest@aqwest.com.au www.aqwest.com.au

CUSTOMER SURVEY
Aqwest carries out a customer survey each year to
measure performance and make recommendations
for improvement where necessary. This year
customers were invited to complete an on-line
survey with 10 entrants having the chance to
win 10, $100 gift vouchers. Aqwest’s overall
satisfaction rating was 85.3 per cent, consistent
with last year’s rating of 85.4 per cent.

Some of the news this year included the
photographic competition, new directors, the
E-Billing Campaign, construction of the new
Aqwest Water Treatment Plant, the launch of water
conservation stickers, the Customer Survey, the
washing machine give-away during National Water
Week and community sponsorship opportunities.
Aqwest also took the opportunity to highlight
waterwise tips, how to read meters to detect leaks,
the watering roster and promoted receiving water
accounts by email and BPAY View.
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The 500 litre tank has eight water dispensing points,
an ice chest and is refrigerated.

WINTER 2018

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Report
This section summarises Aqwest’s main
corporate governance practices, which provides
a framework to ensure it acts with the highest
standards of corporate behaviour.

KEY BOARD ACTIVITIES
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The Aqwest Board of Directors provides leadership
and direction to ensure Aqwest achieves excellence
when providing services to its customers,
completes regulatory and statutory compliance and
operates in a responsible and ethical manner within
the spirit of relevant legislation and the community
it serves.
The Board develops an annual Statement of
Corporate Intent (SCI), which outlines objectives
and performance targets for the coming year. The
Board prepares an annual Strategic Development
Plan (SDP), which sets out the economic and
financial objectives and operational targets over a
five year period.
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the
achievement of the objectives and targets, set out
in the SCI and SDP.
The Board also prepares a Strategic Asset Plan
(SAP) that identifies the top priority investment
proposals and their strategic justification.

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
The Board has legislative authority under the Water
Corporations Act 1995 to set Aqwest’s policies. The
Board is responsible for corporate governance,
approving strategic direction and budgets.
The Board is provided with performance reports at
monthly Board meetings to monitor progress against
targets.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND INDEPENDENCE
As prescribed in the Water Corporations Act 1995,
Directors are to act honestly, exercise due care and
diligence and disclose all material personal interest
in matters involving Aqwest that are raised in Board
meetings.

BOARD CHARTER AND DIRECTORS’ CODE OF
CONDUCT
The Board Charter incorporates relevant contemporary
corporate governance principles and outlines the
Board’s rules and Directors’ roles and responsibilities.
The Board Charter includes a Directors’ Code of
Conduct, which identifies the minimum standards
of conduct required of all Directors of Aqwest when
carrying out their duties and responsibilities.
Directors agree to be bound by the Charter and the
Code.

The Board Charter and Directors’ Code of Conduct
were reviewed in December 2017.

MINISTERIAL DIRECTIONS
The Minister may give direction in writing to the
Board of Directors with respect to the performance
of its function prescribed by legislation. No directions
were received from the Minister during the year.
Ministerial approval is required for transactions that
are above a prescribed amount (currently $25 million),
which will amount to a major initiative or are likely to
be of significant public interest. No such transactions
were made during the year.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND
REPORTING
In addition to this Annual Report, Aqwest also
provided three quarterly reports to the Minister for
Water detailing its performance and progress made
to fulfil its Statement of Corporate Intent.
A written annual report on compliance with the
performance standards specified in the operating
licence is also provided to the Economic Regulation
Authority.
The Board is provided with monthly performance
reports covering a range of performance indicators.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
CHANGES TO THE BOARD
There were a number of changes to the composition of the Board during the year, which have been
summarised in the following table:
Resignations
Judy Jones (Chairman)

Appointments

End of Term

02 August 2017

Edwin Abdo

09 November 2017

John Barratt

11 January 2018
18 January 2018

Wendy Giles

18 January 2018

Patricia Scaffidi

18 January 2018

Board
Meetings
Attended
Number of meetings held

Audit
Committee

Eligible
to Attend

Eligible
to Attend

Attended

12

Risk Management
Committee
Eligible
to Attend

Attended

4

Salary Review
Committee
Eligible
to Attend

Attended

4

1

Judy Jones (Chairman)

1

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

Stan Liaros (Chairman)

5

6

2

2

2

2

0

0

Neville Eastman

11

12

4

4

0

0

1

1

Committees of the Board that operated during the
year ending 30 June 2018 were:

Hans Dopheide

11

12

0

0

3

4

1

1

• Audit Committee

Edwin Abdo

2

3

0

0

0

1

0

0

• Risk Management Committee

Rob Nicholson

11

12

0

0

0

0

0

0

• Salary Review Committee

John Barratt

6

6

2

2

0

0

0

0

Wendy Giles

6

6

0

0

0

0

0

0

Patricia Scaffidi

6

6

1

1

0

0

0

0

BOARD COMMITTEES

From time to time, the Board convenes working
groups to deal with specific strategic issues. The
number of Board and committee meetings held,
and attended by each Director during this reporting
period, is shown in the table left.
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Stan Liaros (Chairman)

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

SALARY REVIEW COMMITTEE
The Salary Review Committee is chaired by
the Board Chairman Stan Liaros and includes
Directors Neville Eastman and Hans Dopheide.
The Committee supports and assists the Board to
ensure remuneration and benefit arrangements
support the strategic aims of the business whilst
complying with regulatory requirements and
satisfying the requirements of Aqwest’s owner.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Aqwest protects its customers, its staff and its
ongoing business interests by maintaining an
effective corporate risk management framework.
The risk framework is used during strategic
planning, development of business cases and in
day-to-day operations.
The Risk Management Committee is chaired by
Director Hans Dopheide and includes Board
Chairman Stan Liaros.
The role of the Risk Management Committee is to
assist the Board by:
• Managing standards and strategic direction for
risk management

•D
 eveloping and promoting a culture of risk
management
•E
 nsuring cost effective control of business risks
•P
 roviding oversight of the major risk areas, and
Business Continuity Planning
•M
 onitoring and evaluating the progress and
performance of risk management
During 2017/18, Aqwest focused on better
integration between the risk management and
compliance management systems and reviewing
its risk performance in order to develop a Risk
Management Improvement Plan.
A review of the Risk Policy was completed in October
2017.
Each year Aqwest tests its Business Continuity and
Water Quality Incident Plans using desktop scenario
exercises. An independent, qualified and experienced
emergency management facilitator runs this test.
This year’s scenario tested Aqwest’s capacity to
respond to a security incident threatening drinking
water quality. Aqwest’s crisis management and
recovery teams were found to be very effective,
with a recommendation to improve alignment with
the Australasian Inter-Service Incident Management
System.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Internal audit is an integral part of the corporate
governance framework by which Aqwest maintains
effective systems of accountability and control at all
levels.
The Audit Committee manages Aqwest’s internal
audit function. This function supports the
Audit Committee and the executive group by
independently and objectively reviewing the
effectiveness of internal control systems.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Director Neville
Eastman and includes Chairman Stan Liaros.
The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the
Board with reviewing and monitoring its oversight
responsibilities, including:
• The integrity of Aqwest’s financial statements
• The Board’s compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements
• Reviewing all audit reports
• The performance of Aqwest’s internal audit
function and independent internal Auditors
The Audit Committee approved a revised and
updated Strategic Internal Audit Charter in August

2017. The primary objective of the Strategic
Internal Audit Plan is to maximise the efficiency and
effectiveness of Aqwest’s Internal Audit function.
This is achieved by identifying specific areas that
pose the greatest risk of undesirable events that
could adversely affect the financial and/or nonfinancial areas of Aqwest.
The methodology used to specifically identify these
areas include examining the latest risk register
to identify the operational areas responsible for
the highest rated risks (key risks) and reviewing
strategic plans to identify those specific operational
areas that play a critical role in assisting Aqwest to
achieve its key objectives.
The Paxon Group conducted the 2018 Strategic
Internal Audit, which covered the following areas:
• Budgeting, Cashflow Management and Cost
Control
• General Finance Controls
• Information and Communication Technology
Security
All recommendations from the audit were rated as
minor and were endorsed by the Audit Committee,
and added to the Audit Committee’s action list for
progression by management.
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AUDIT

Disclosure
Requirements
RECORD KEEPING
Aqwest is committed to maintaining good recordkeeping practices and meeting the legislative
requirements of Section 61 of the State Records Act
2000 and the State Records Commission Standards
(Standard 2 - Principle 6).
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In August 2014, the State Records Commission
approved Aqwest’s most recent record-keeping plan.
The Plan outlines how Aqwest creates, manages and
disposes of corporate records.
Record-keeping training is mandatory for all staff to
gain an understanding of their responsibilities and
obligations. As part of the induction process, all new
staff are provided with an induction manual that
addresses staff roles and responsibilities in respect
to the record-keeping plan. Inductees also attend
individual record-keeping training and information
sessions.
Training sessions for current employees are available
if the need is identified. Requirements for recordkeeping training are reviewed annually as part of the
performance appraisal process.
In the last year, Aqwest regularly conducted audits
of record-keeping practices and system use by its
staff.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Public Interest Disclosures Act 2003 protects the
privacy and confidentiality of both the individual
making a public interest disclosure, and the subject
of that disclosure.
In June 2018, the Chief Executive Officer provided
all staff with training in Public Interest Disclosure.

PUBLIC SECTOR STANDARDS AND
ETHICAL CODES
Aqwest’s Staff Code of Conduct was developed
in alignment with the Public Sector Commission
guidelines.

There were no public interest disclosures in this
reporting period.

It details some of the required behaviours of all
employees and defines the values for the way
Aqwest undertakes its business and relates with
each other.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION (FOI)

Aqwest’s Human Resources Manual has detailed
guidelines and processes in place which support
the Code.

Aqwest met its obligations under the Freedom of
Information Act 1992 in this reporting period. During
this year, one FOI application was received.
Under Section 96 of the Freedom of Information Act
1992, Aqwest is required to produce an Information
Statement. Its purpose is to provide a description
of Aqwest’s procedures for giving members of the
public access to documents, as well as the types
of documents it holds. Aqwest maintained this
Information Statement during this reporting period.

The Staff Code of Conduct is addressed at
induction for all new staff and is published on
Aqwest’s intranet. Staff are encouraged to read
and understand the Staff Code of Conduct and
discuss any matter that requires clarification with
their supervisor.
In June 2018, the Chief Executive Officer held a
refresher session with all staff.

REPORTABLE EXPENDITURE
The Electoral Act 1907 (Section 175 ZE) requires
the disclosure of certain categories of expenditure.
Details of the organisations contracted by Aqwest
and the amounts paid in the last year are summarised
below;
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Advertising agencies
None
Market research organisations
AEC Group - $10,265
Polling organisations
None
Direct mail organisations
None (only used for billing of accounts)
Media advertising organisations
Marketforce - $3,102
West Australian Newspapers - $1,847
Big Fish Media and Events - $3,285
Facebook - $216
State Law Publisher - $66
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PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE (PID)

Directors’ Report
The Directors of Aqwest present their report for the
12 months ended 30 June 2018.

DIRECTORS
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The following were Directors of Aqwest at the date of
this report:
Mr Stan Liaros (Chairman)
Director since January 2018
Mr Neville Eastman
Director since November 2013
Mr Rob Nicholson
Director since November 2013
Mr Hans Dopheide
Director since November 2013
Dr Wendy Giles
Director since January 2018
Mrs Patricia Scaffidi
Director since January 2018
Directors’ biographies are shown on page 9.
Directors’ meetings and attendance are shown on
page 33.
Directors’ compensation details are shown on page 41.

PRINCIPAL FUNCTIONS
The principal functions of Aqwest are to:
• Acquire, store, treat, distribute, market and otherwise
supply drinking water

• Undertake, maintain and operate any works, system,
facilities, apparatus or equipment required for this
purpose

June 2018 and will be recognised in subsequent
reports.

There has been no significant change in the nature
of Aqwest’s functions during this year.

Aqwest’s dividend payout ratio is 75 per cent for
2017/18 and will increase to 85 percent from
2018/19.

OPERATING RESULTS

REMUNERATION REPORT

Aqwest operates in a regulatory framework
comprising the Economic Regulation Authority,
Department of Water, Department of Treasury and
the Department of Health.

Key management personnel comprise the
Directors of the Board and Executives who are
responsible for planning, directing and controlling
Aqwest’s activities. The Directors’ compensation is
determined by the Public Sector Commission and is
approved by the Minister.

During the year, Aqwest supplied 6.397 million
kilolitres of water.
Aqwest made a profit before income tax equivalent
of $3.983 million (2017: Profit $4.723 million). On
an after-tax equivalent basis, the profit was $2.591
million (2017: $2.929 million).

There are three (3) Executive staff employed by
Aqwest as follows;
1. Chief Executive Officer
2. Manager Water Services
3. Manager Corporate Services

DIVIDENDS
a) Dividends paid or declared by Aqwest since the
end of the previous financial year: Aqwest paid
a final dividend of $1.898 million in December
2017 for the year ending 30 June 2017.
b) Dividends declared after end of year: After
the balance sheet date, the Directors have
proposed a final dividend of $1.953 million for
the 2017/18 year, payable on or before 31
December 2018. The financial effect of the
dividend has not been brought to account in
the financial statements for the year ended 30

The compensation package for each position
consists of salary and the statutory superannuation
guarantee of 9.5%.
The compensation packages for the Chief
Executive Officer and Manager Water Services are
frozen for the period 28th February 2018 to 30th
June 2021 inclusive in accordance with the Salaries
and Allowances Act 1975.
The compensation package for the Manager
Corporate Services and all other staff is subject to
an annual increment of $1,000.00 in accordance
with the Aqwest Enterprise Agreement 2017.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Executives
Chief
Mr Brad Bevis Executive
Officer

Mr Gary
Hallsworth

Manager
Water
Services

Mr Joe Smith

Manager
Corporate
Services

Mrs Lisa
Brockman

Acting
Manager
Corporate
Services (a)

Year
ended 30
June 2018

Year
ended 30
June 2017

√

√

√

√

√

(a) For the period 04 June 2018 to 30 June 2018.

√

√

-

Executive remuneration fell within the following bands, and is rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars:
Number of
Staff

Salary and fees
(a)

Postemployment
benefits
(b)

Long term
benefits
(c)

Total

230,001 - 240,000

1

205,000

28,000

-

233,000

180,001 - 190,000

1

193,000

21,000

(28,000)

186,000

160,001 - 170,000

1

143,000

15,000

5,000

163,000

10,001 – 20,000

1

13,000

1,200

-

15,000

230,001 - 240,000

1

204,000

25,000

4,000

233,000

200,001 - 210,000

1

192,000

20,000

6,000

207,000

160,001 - 170,000

1

151,000

16,000

7,000

164,000

Total remuneration band $

Year ended 30 June 2018

Year ended 30 June 2017

(a) Includes reportable superannuation contributions and/or salary sacrificed superannuation.
(b) Superannuation guarantee and movement in the annual accrual of the payout of a portion of accrued
personal leave upon termination (available to all Aqwest staff under the current Enterprise Agreement).
(c) Movement in the annual accrual of long service leave and annual leave.
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The names and positions of the Executives were:
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The names and positions of the Directors during the year were:
Directors

Year ended 30
June 2018

Year ended 30
June 2017
√

Ms Judy Jones

Chairman (non-executive)

√

Mr Stan Liaros

Chairman (non-executive)

√

Mr Neville Eastman

Deputy Chairman (non-executive)

√

√

Mr Hans Dopheide

Director (non-executive)

√

√

Mr Edwin Abdo

Director (non-executive)

√

√

Mr Rob Nicholson

Director (non-executive)

√

√

Mr John Barratt

Director (non-executive)

√

√

Dr Wendy Giles

Director (non-executive)

√

Mrs Patricia Scaffidi

Director (non-executive)

√

Remuneration fell within the following bands, and is rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars:
Number of
Directors

Salary
and fees
(a)

Non-monetary
benefits
(b)

Post-employment
benefits
(b)

Long term
benefits
(d)

Total

10,001 to 20,000

4

54,000

-

6,000

-

60,000

0,000 to 10,000

5

25,000

-

3,000

-

28,000

20,001 to 30,000

1

25,000

-

3,000

-

28,000

10,001 to 20,000

5

63,000

-

6,000

-

69,000

Total remuneration band
$

Year ended 30 June 2017

(a) Sitting fees
(b) Superannuation guarantee

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board.

Stan Liaros
Chairman
17 August 2018

Neville Eastman
Director
17 August 2018
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Year ended 30 June 2018
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FINANCIAL
REPORT 2018

FINANCIAL
REPORT

Directors’ Declaration
In the opinion of the Directors of Bunbury Water
Corporation:
(a) the financial statements and notes are in
accordance with the Water Corporations Act 1995,
including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the Corporation’s
financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of its
performance, for the financial year ended on
that date; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
Corporation will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the
Directors:

Stan Liaros
Chairman
17 August 2018

Neville Eastman
Director
17 August 2018
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(ii) complying with Australian Accounting
Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations
2001.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
Note

2018

2017

$

$

Income

Other comprehensive income

Revenue

Items not reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

Water sales

7

13,696,868

14,108,386

Operating subsidy

7a

703,000

703,000

Interest revenue

8

195,743

199,584

Developer contributions

9

223,733

Other revenue

10
15

Gain on disposal of non-current assets
Total income

-

Gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity

28

10,836

112,974

658,297

Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income

28

(2,489,805)

232,271

166,889

129,177

Total other comprehensive income

10,449,291

345,195

3,746

63,032

Total comprehensive income for the period

13,040,201

3,274,077

14,989,979

15,861,476

11

6,508,856

6,598,153

Administration expenses

14

3,400,235

3,329,921

Finance costs

16a

16,088

18,288

Other expenses

16

1,082,179

1,191,810

11,007,358

11,138,172

3,982,621

4,723,304

1,391,711

1,794,422

Profit /(Loss) after income tax

2,590,910

2,928,882

Profit/(loss) for the period

2,590,910

2,928,882

Income tax equivalent expense

18

$

12,928,260

Operational expenses

Profit/(loss) before income tax

2017

$

28

Expenses

Total expenses

2018

Changes in asset revaluation surplus

Gains
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Note

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
Note

2018

2017

$

$

Note

2018

2017

$

$

Assets
Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

30

1,321,048

1,144,597

Provisions

26

86,818

107,041

Other financial assets

19

5,225,790

5,275,000

Borrowings

25b

271,733

333,528

Receivables

20

1,355,091

1,709,654

Deferred tax liabilities

27

11,647,998

9,151,676

Inventories

21

535,279

522,993

Total non-current liabilities

12,006,549

9,592,245

Other current assets

22

350,344

253,755

Total liabilities

13,976,033

11,532,090

8,787,552

8,905,999

Net Assets

98,408,438

87,266,575

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

23

101,482,018

89,472,627

Other non-current assets

22

2,114,901

420,039

Total non-current assets

103,596,919

89,892,666

Total assets

112,384,471

98,798,665

Equity
Reserves

28

67,472,134

57,426,954

Retained earnings

28

30,936,304

29,839,621

98,408,438

87,266,575

Total equity

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Current liabilities
Payables

25a

1,105,598

1,060,326

Borrowings

25b

62,992

60,929

Provisions

26

800,894

818,590

1,969,484

1,939,845

Total current liabilities
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Liabilities

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
Note

Contributed
Equity

Asset revaluation
reserve

Other
reserves

Retained
profits

Total
equity

$

$

$

$

$

Opening balance at 1 July 2016

51,177,922

6,218,648

28,578,832

85,975,402

Total comprehensive income for the year

28

232,271

-

3,041,806

3,274,077

Transfers to reserves

28

-

3,422,333

(3,422,333)

-

Transfers from reserves

28

-

(3,624,220)

3,624,220

-

51,410,193

6,016,761

31,822,525

89,249,479

-

-

(1,982,904)

(1,982,904)

-

-

(1,982,904)

(1,982,904)

Closing balance at 30 June 2017

51,410,193

6,016,761

29,839,621

87,266,575

Opening balance at 1 July 2017

51,410,193

6,016,761

29,839,621

87,266,575

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Dividends paid

28a
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Total transactions with owners

Total comprehensive income for the year

28

(2,489,805)

-

2,601,746

111,941

Transfers to reserves

28

12,928,260

2,633,207

(2,633,207)

12,928,260

Transfers from reserves

28

-

(3,026,482)

3,026,482

-

61,848,648

5,623,486

33,834,642

100,306,776

-

-

(1,898,338)

(1,898,338)

-

-

(1,898,338)

(1,898,338)

61,848,648

5,623,486

30,936,304

98,408,438

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Dividends paid

28a

Total transactions with owners
Closing balance at 30 June 2018
The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
2018

2017

$

$

Note

2018

2017

$

$

(1,469,943)

(2,541,933)

Local government rate equivalent

(78,956)

(71,055)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows to state government

Receipts

Income tax equivalent

Sale of goods and services

14,066,034 13,566,347

Developer contributions

229,725

260,533

Land tax

(29,426)

(33,918)

Interest received

204,999

193,706

Dividend

(1,898,338)

(1,982,904)

20,501

44,978

703,000

703,000

GST receipts from taxation authority

651,227

680,083

Other receipts

170,635

192,209

GST receipts on sales

Payments
Supplies and services
GST payments on purchases
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

30

(8,329,480)

(8,498,643)

(716,669)

(742,238)

6,296,972

5,696,975

Purchase of non-current physical assets
(Purchase)/drawdown of investments
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

Net cash provided to State Government

(2,773,663) (3,926,810)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalent assets at the end of
period

30

176,451

296,548

1,144,597

848,048

1,321,048

1,144,597

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets

Operating subsidy

60,909

214,901

(3,381,157)

(3,255,696)

49,210

1,643,000

(3,271,038) (1,397,795)

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

(15,875)

(18,082)

Repayment of borrowings

(59,945)

(57,740)

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

(75,820)

(75,822)
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Note

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
NOTE 1 AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(a) General
Aqwest’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2018 have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting
Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
Aqwest has adopted any applicable, new and revised
Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.
(b) Early adoption of standards
There has been no early adoption of any Australian
Accounting Standards issued or amended (but not operative)
for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2018.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial report is a general purpose financial report
which has been prepared in accordance with the Water
Corporations Act 1995 and Australian Accounting
Standards (including Australian Interpretations) adopted by
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are presented in Australian
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar.
Note 4 ‘Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been
made in the process of applying Aqwest’s accounting
policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts
recognised in the financial statements.
Note 5 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses
key assumptions made concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

a) General statement
Aqwest is the trading name of the Bunbury Water
Corporation, a corporation domiciled in Australia.
Aqwest is a not-for-profit entity primarily involved in the
provision of potable water services. Aqwest prepares
general purpose financial statements in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the AASB.
b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting using the historical cost convention,
except for land, buildings and infrastructure, which have
been measured at fair value.

c) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable.
Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as
follows:
i) Water sales
Revenue from annual supply and consumption charges is
shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as the
amounts levied and billed for the period, including interest
on overdue amounts, less rebates and concessions
allowed to entitled customers. Other water charges
include connection fees, relocation fees, disconnection
fees, meter repair charges, meter reading charges and

financial enquiries charges and are recognised as they are
levied and billed.
ii) Interest
Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis.
iii) Developer contributions
Developer contributions are recognised as revenue at fair
value when Aqwest takes control over the assets comprising
the contributions. Aqwest receives capital contributions from
external parties in the form of either cash or assets.
iv) Other revenue
Other revenue includes hydrant hire, lease income and other
miscellaneous revenue received.
v) Operating subsidies
Operating subsidies are received from Government for
revenue foregone from rebates and concessions to pensioners
and seniors on annual supply and consumption charges. They
are recognised in the period in which they are received.
d) Income tax
Aqwest operates within the National Tax Equivalent Regime
(NTER) whereby an equivalent amount in respect of income
tax is payable to the Department of
Treasury. The calculation of the liability in respect
of income tax is governed by NTER guidelines and
directions approved by Government. As a consequence of
participation in the NTER, Aqwest is required to comply
with AASB 112 ‘Income Taxes’.
The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements, and to unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for
temporary differences at the tax rate expected to apply
when the assets are recovered or liabilities settled, based on
those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to
these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction,
other than a business combination, that at the time of the
transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable
profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.
Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts
recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in
equity.
e) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which
they are declared.
f) Property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
i) Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure
costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets. The cost of
utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives.
Items of property, plant, equipment and infrastructure
costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Treasurer’s Instructions reinforce this statement as
follows:
There may be circumstances where agencies should apply
the standard asset capitalisation threshold of $5,000 to the
aggregated value of a group or network of interconnected but
dissimilar assets for the provision of one simultaneous service eg
Mains, Services etc.
As such, assets in a network of assets or a group of assets
(which may consist of individual insignificant items) may be
aggregated.
ii) Initial recognition and measurement
Property, plant, equipment and infrastructure are initially
recognised at cost. For items of property, plant and
equipment and infrastructure acquired at no cost or for
nominal cost, cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
iii) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation
model is used for measurement of land, buildings and
infrastructure and historical cost for all other property, plant
and equipment. Land, buildings and infrastructure are carried
at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and
infrastructure and accumulated impairment losses.
All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Where market evidence is available, the
fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of
current market buying values by reference to recent market
transactions.

Aqwest’s current Operating Licence expires in January
2022. However, Aqwest views ‘useful life’ to relate to the
full useful life over which the assets will be utilised.

When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market
transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount restated to the revalued amount.

AASB 116 paragraph 9 states:
It may be appropriate to aggregate individually insignificant
items and apply the recognition criteria to the aggregated
value.

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land
and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use.
This normally applies where buildings are specialised or
where land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets

is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the
remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset,
i.e. the depreciated replacement cost.
Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the
depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying
amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated
proportionately.
Land and buildings are independently valued when an initial
property index indicates that the carrying amount may
differ materially from the asset’s fair value at the end of the
reporting period, or at least every five years.
Fair value of infrastructure has been determined by reference
to the depreciated replacement cost (existing use basis) as the
assets are specialised and no market-based evidence of value
is available.
Independent valuations are obtained at least every five years
for infrastructure, or when an initial assessment indicates that
the fair value may differ materially from the carrying amount.
Land under infrastructure is included in land reported under
note 23 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and is valued with
reference to current market values. Independent valuations
are obtained at least every five years.
An annual indexation exercise is conducted independently
to ensure that the carrying amounts of infrastructure assets
classes, which are not revalued, did not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair value at the end of
the reporting period.
When infrastructure is revalued, the accumulated
depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued
amount.
The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are
made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to
assets and in determining estimated useful life. Professional
judgment by the valuer is required where the evidence does
not provide a clear distinction between market type and
existing use assets.
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The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative
amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences
to measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception
is made for certain temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
iv) Derecognition

g) Intangible assets

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property,
plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating to
that asset is retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

i) Computer software

v) Asset revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments
and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets
as described in note 23 ‘Property plant and equipment’.
vi) Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are
systematically depreciated over their estimated useful
lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their
future economic benefits.
Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight line (SL) method, using rates, which are reviewed
annually. The estimated effective lives for each class of
depreciable asset are as follows:
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Asset class

Effective life
(yrs)

Buildings at Fair Value

1 to 98

Mains at Fair Value

1 to 84

Meters at Fair Value

1 to 8

Treatment Plants at Fair Value

1 to 80

Reservoirs at Fair Value

1 to 79

Bores & Pumps at Fair Value

1 to 77

Service Connections at Cost

1 to 19

Plant & Equipment at Cost

1 to 17

Motor Vehicles at Cost

1 to 7

Office Equipment at Cost

1 to 9

Tools at Cost

1 to 8

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is
treated as property, plant and equipment. Software that is
not an integral part of the related hardware and cost less
than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. The
value of intangible software is shown at note 23 ‘Property
plant and equipment’.
h) Impairment of assets
Property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets are
tested for any indication of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Where there is an indication of
impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.
As Aqwest is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset
has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and depreciated replacement cost. The risk of
impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an
asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where the
replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant
change in useful life.
Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify
that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects
the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future
economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk
from falling replacement costs.
Aqwest does not have any intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life, or are not yet available for use.
i) Leases
Aqwest holds long term operating leases for
telecommunications tower sites located at its facilities.
Lease payments are received on scheduled dates and are
generally indexed annually by the Consumer Price Index
(CPI).

The portion of lease income received in advance relating
to a future financial year is shown as a liability (see note
25a ‘Payables’ and note 33 ‘Non-cancellable operating
lease revenue’).
j) Financial instruments
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, Aqwest has three
categories of financial instruments:
•
•
•

Loans and receivables
Held-to-maturity investments (term deposits)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised costs

These have been disaggregated into the following asset
classes:
Financial assets

Financial liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Payables

Receivables

WATC Loan

Term deposits
Initial recognition and measurement of financial
instruments is at fair value, which normally equates to the
transaction cost or face value. The fair value of short-term
receivables and payables is the transaction cost or face
value, because there is no interest rate applicable, and the
effect of discounting is not material.
Held-to-maturity investments have been classified as
short term where maturity terms are less than one year
from the reporting date. Aqwest assesses at each balance
date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
k) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash
and cash equivalent assets comprise cash in bank cheque
accounts, at call cash deposit accounts, petty cash and
cash floats.
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Inventories are classified as held for distribution and
are measured using the weighted average cost method.
Inventories mainly consist of consumable engineering
supplies and spare materials for use in the maintenance
and operation of distribution and water treatment assets.
m) Receivables
i) Trade receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice
amount. The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an
ongoing basis. The carrying amount of trade receivables is
equivalent to fair value, as the average collection period
for outstanding debt is 31 days (as at 30 June 2018).
n) Investments
Aqwest classifies its investments as held to maturity
investments, comprised of term deposits. Investments
are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value
of consideration given, including directly attributable
transaction costs.
o) Payables
Payables are recognised when Aqwest becomes obliged to
make future payments as a result of a purchase of goods
or services at the amounts payable. The carrying amount
is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled
within 30 days.
p) Borrowings
All loans payable are initially recognised at fair value, being
the net proceeds received. Subsequent measurement is at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the
financial year end. Aqwest considers the carrying amount
of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair value.
See note 25a ‘Payables’.
r) Employee benefits provisions
Employee benefits provisions are liabilities of uncertain
timing and amount. Aqwest recognises a provision
where there is a present legal, equitable or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and when the
outflow of economic benefits is probable and can be
measured reliably. Provisions are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period.
i) Annual leave and Personal Leave
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the reporting period. It is
therefore considered to be ‘other long-term employee
benefits’. The annual leave liability is recognised and
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration
rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels
including non-salary components such as employer
superannuation contributions, as well as the experience
of employee departures and periods of service. The
expected future payments are discounted using market
yields at the end of the reporting period on national
government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

q) Accrued salaries and wages

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current
liability, as Aqwest does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

Accrued salaries and wages represent the amount due
to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the
end of the last pay period for that financial year does not
coincide with the end of the financial year.

Personal leave entitlements for permanent employees
are accumulating and partially vesting. The liability
for personal leave is recognised only for the vesting
component of entitlements.

ii) Rostered days off, Time in lieu
The liability for rostered days off and time in lieu expected
to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period
is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts
expected to be paid when the liability is settled.
The provisions for rostered days off and time in lieu are
classified as current liabilities, as Aqwest does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liabilities for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.
iii) Long service leave
Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period
and is therefore recognised and measured at the present
value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply
at the time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments, consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels
including non-salary components such as employer
superannuation contributions, as well as the experience
of employee departures and periods of service. The
expected future payments are discounted to present
value using market yields at the reporting date on national
government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as
current liabilities as Aqwest does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the
end of the reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional
long service leave provisions are classified as non-current
liabilities because Aqwest has an unconditional right to
defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has
completed the requisite years of service.
iv) Superannuation
Aqwest does not participate in a defined benefits plan and
as such, there is no superannuation provision.
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l) Inventories
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Employer superannuation contributions relating to the
employee benefits provisions are included within the leave
provision. The associated expense is included in other
expenses (note 16), administration expenses (note 14) and
cost of services (note 13).
s) Other provisions
i) Employment on costs
Employment on costs, including workers compensation
insurance and payroll tax, are not employee benefits
and are recognised as expenses and liabilities when the
employment to which they relate has occurred.
Employment on costs are shown at note 13 ‘Cost of
services’ and at note 14 ‘Administration expenses’. The
related liability is included in the provision for employment
on costs.
t) Superannuation expense
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Aqwest’s default fund for defined contribution plans is
WA Super. Employees have the option of electing the
default plan or another plan of choice. The majority of
Aqwest’s employees have plans with the default fund. The
superannuation expense of the defined contribution plans
is recognised as and when the contributions fall due.
u) Comparative figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to
be comparable with the figures presented in the current
financial year.
v) Reporting entity

NOTE 3 – OTHER POLICIES
a) Assets and services received free of charge or for
nominal cost
Assets or services received free of charge that can be
reliably measured are recognised as revenues and as assets
at their equivalent fair value. For Aqwest, such resources
are generally gifted mains assets from developers and are
included at Note 9 ‘Developer Contributions’.

NOTE 4 –
JUDGEMENTS MADE BY MANAGEMENT IN
APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements about the application
of accounting policies that have a significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements. Aqwest
evaluates these judgements regularly.
a) Adoption of fair value versus cost basis for non-current
assets
Aqwest adopts the cost basis and fair value basis of
accounting for valuing non-current physical assets. Gifted
mains infrastructure assets are originally recognised at cost,
based on the contractual value of the works transferred to
Aqwest. Subsequent measurement of these assets utilises
the revaluation model.

NOTE 5 – KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The reporting entity is the Bunbury Water Corporation
trading as Aqwest domiciled in Australia. The Corporation is
a not-for-profit entity primarily involved in the provision of
potable water services.

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are
based on historical experience and various other factors
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

w) Dividends

a) Long service leave, Annual Leave and Personal Leave

Aqwest paid a final dividend of $1.898 million in
December 2017 for the year ending 30 June 2017.

In calculating Aqwest’s long service leave, annual leave
and personal leave provision, several estimations and

assumptions have been made. These include discount rates,
employee retention rates and expected future payments.
Any changes in these estimations and assumptions may
impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave
provision.

NOTE 6 – DISCLOSURE OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICY AND ESTIMATES
a) Voluntary changes in accounting policy
There were no voluntary changes in accounting policy
applied in the 2017-2018 financial year.
b) Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not
yet operative
Aqwest has not early applied any of the following Australian
Accounting Standards that have been issued that may
impact Aqwest. By virtue of a limited exemption, the
Authority has early adopted AASB 2015 7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value Disclosures
of Not for Profit Public Sector Entities. Where applicable,
Aqwest plans to apply these Australian Accounting
Standards from their application date.
Operative for reporting periods beginning on/
after 1 January 2018:
AASB 9: Financial Instruments
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of
changes to accounting treatments.
Aqwest has assessed that recognition of expected credit
losses will increase the amount of impairment losses
recognised as Other expenses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, and thus have an adverse impact
on Aqwest’s Surplus/(Deficit) for the period.
AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
This Standard establishes the principles that Aqwest
shall apply to report useful information to users of
financial statements about the nature, amount, timing

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Aqwest has not yet determined the potential impact of
the Standard on Water Sales revenue. In broad terms, it is
anticipated that the terms and conditions attached to these
revenues will defer revenue recognition until Aqwest has
discharged its performance obligations.
AASB 16: Leases
This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value.
Whilst the impact of AASB 16 has not yet been quantified,
Aqwest currently has operating lease commitments for
$567,970. The worth of non cancellable operating leases
which Aqwest anticipates most of this amount will be
brought onto the statement of financial position, excepting
amounts pertinent to short term or low value leases.
Interest and amortisation expense will increase and rental
expense will decrease.
AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
This Standard clarifies and simplifies the income recognition
requirements that apply to not for profit (NFP) entities,
more closely reflecting the economic reality of NFP entity
transactions that are not contracts with customers. Timing
of income recognition is dependent on whether such a
transaction gives rise to a liability, or other performance
obligation (a promise to transfer a good or service), or,
an obligation to acquire an asset. Aqwest has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the
Standard.
AASB 2010-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB
1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128,
131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10,
12, 19 & 127]

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a
result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.
The mandatory application date of this Standard has
been amended by AASB 2012 6 and AASB 2014 1 to
1 January 2018. Aqwest has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2014-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards
Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9
and consequential amendments to other Standards. It
has not yet been assessed by Aqwest to determine the
application or potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 15
This Standard gives effect to the consequential
amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
(including Interpretations) arising from the issuance
of AASB 15. The mandatory application date of this
Standard has been amended by AASB 2015-8 to 1
January 2018. Aqwest has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014)
This Standard gives effect to the consequential
amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
(including Interpretations) arising from the issuance
of AASB 9 (December 2014). Aqwest has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the
Standard.
AASB 2015-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15
This Standard amends the mandatory application date of
AASB 15 to 1 January 2018 (instead of 1 January 2017).
It also defers the consequential amendments that were
originally set out in AASB 2015-5. Aqwest has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of
AASB 15.

AASB 2016-3: Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Clarifications to AASB 15
This Standard clarifies identifying performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, timing of recognising
revenue from granting a licence, and, provides further
transitional provisions to AASB 15. Aqwest has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact.
AASB 2016-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Deferral of AASB 15 for Not for Profit Entities
This Standard defers, for not-for-profit entities, the
mandatory application date of AASB 15 to 1 January 2019,
and the consequential amendments that were originally set
out in AASB 2014-5. There is no financial impact arising
from this standard.
AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for Not
for Profit Entities
This Standard inserts Australian requirements and
authoritative implementation guidance for not for profit
entities into AASB 9 and AASB 15. This guidance assists
not-for-profit entities in applying those Standards to
particular transactions and other events. There is no
financial impact.
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and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a
contract with a customer. The mandatory application date
of this Standard is currently 1 January 2019 after being
amended by AASB 2016-7.
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2018

2017

2018

2017

$

$

$

$

Note 7 – Water sales

Note 10 – Other revenue

Supply charges

4,853,067

4,702,967

Lease income (a)

Consumption charges

9,301,390

9,574,294

388,107

633,392

(845,696)

(802,267)

13,696,868

14,108,386

Other water charges
Less: rebates given
Total water sales

Pensioner and Senior consumption/
supply rebates

703,000

703,000

Total operating subsidies

703,000

703,000

Interest from cash and cash equivalents

19,708

15,756

Interest from receivables

31,890

22,028

Interest from other financial assets

144,145

161,800

Total interest revenue

195,743

199,584

218,899

260,533

Transferred assets – non cash

4,834

397,764

Total developer contributions

223,733

658,297

Note 8 – Interest revenue
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58,885

Other revenue

106,173

70,292

Total other revenue

166,889

129,177

2,503,035

2,406,603

Electricity

479,056

478,862

Salaries and wages

973,929

1,077,392

-

113,338

3,956,021

4,076,195

Depreciation

2,552,835

2,521,958

Total cost of services

6,508,856

6,598,153

(a) See Note 33 - Non-cancellable operating lease revenue.

Note 11 – Operational expenses
Cost of services

Note 7a – Operating subsidies

Materials / contractors

Employee overheads (a)

Note 9 – Developer contributions
Infrastructure contributions

60,716

(a) Overheads are no longer being allocated to costs of services but are shown in salaries and wages.

Note 12 – Cost of water sales
Cost of water sales (a)

1,499,169

1,527,728

Total cost of water sales

1,499,169

1,527,728

(a) Cost of water sales represents the costs incurred for water treatment, operation of bores and
reservoirs and the depreciation expense related to these processes. These costs are included in Note 11 Operational expenses.

2018

2017

2018

2017

$

$

$

$

Note 13 – Cost of services

Note 14 – Administration expenses

Cost of services are allocated on a job basis as follows:

Write offs

Bore maintenance and operations

773

755

Computer maintenance and software

366,539

372,078

186,692

139,703

27,542

23,800

2,559,314

2,536,861

259,375

256,724

3,400,235

3,329,921

70,008

27,729

Reservoir maintenance

134,820

142,289

Insurance (a)

Treatment plant maintenance

285,906

311,854

Legal expenses

Mains maintenance

258,883

300,129

Salaries and wages

Compliance water testing

141,151

155,113

Superannuation

Service maintenance

435,324

429,577

Total administration expenses

Groundwater analysis

21,573

29,680

(a) See Note 17b – Related Party Disclosures

Booster pump maintenance

55,611

31,704

Note 15 – Net (gain)/loss on disposal of non-current assets

Treatment plant operations

98,597

127,357

Cost of disposal of non-current assets:

188,942

233,984

Plant, equipment and vehicles

Grounds maintenance

60,232

59,638

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets:

Non recurrent projects

175,883

81,171

Plant, equipment and vehicles

Wages operations administration

605,806

485,447

41,942

26,659

Minor assets

480,627

778,292

Electricity

479,056

478,862

Other service expenses (a)

421,659

376,710

3,956,020

4,076,195

Chemical treatment

Chargeable works

Total cost of services

(a) Other services expenses include consumables and other minor projects.

Net (gain)/loss on disposal

57,163

151,869

(60,909)

(214,901)

(3,746)

(63,032)
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2018

2017

2018

2017

$

$

$

$

Note 16 – Other expenses
Public relations

62,551

50,978

Interest expense

16,088

18,288

Audit cost (a)

47,270

54,873

Total finance costs

16,088

18,288

Corporate uniforms

14,468

12,483

Note 17a – Gross cash salaries and wages

Valuation expenses

11,501

6,675

Administration building utilities

121,110

117,654

Finance and administration (a)

1,460,398

1,552,195

Postage, printing and stationary

108,892

113,231

Water services administration (a)

1,092,065

955,928

33,258

21,907

954,387

1,121,751

189,740

154,568

79,664

87,500

Advertising and promotion (c)

35,225

33,195

3,586,514

3,717,374

Board expenses (d)

88,688

104,526

Administration building maintenance

53,920

63,899

Staff training (e)

55,149

54,256

Bank charges

31,057

28,974

8,714

10,664

Energy and Water Ombudsman

10,637

42,504

Land tax

29,426

33,918

Local government rate equivalent

78,956

71,055

Business Development

11,911

122,598

Staff services program

30,371

27,988

Other

59,335

65,864

1,082,179

1,191,810

Fringe benefits tax
Payroll tax (b)
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Note 16a – Finance costs

Office expenses

Total other expenses

(a) Includes contracted strategic internal audit service and remuneration of the OAG.
(b) Payroll tax for 2018 includes all staff. In 2017 payroll tax for operations staff was shown as an employee
overhead in Note 11 – Operating Expenses
(c) Includes water conservation, publicity, customer survey and general advertising
(d) Includes Directors remuneration, meeting expenses and travel and accommodation for Directors.
(e) Includes conference and seminar costs and associated travel and accommodation.

Salaries and wages by department:

Distribution and treatment operations (b)
Directors (c)
Total gross cash salaries and wages

a) Included at Note 14 - Administration expenses (salaries and wages)
b) Included at Note 11 - Operational expenses (salaries, wages and employee overheads)
c) Included at Note 16 - Other expenses (board expenses)
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Related parties of Aqwest include:
a.

all Ministers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled
entities;

b.

all senior officers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly
controlled entities;

c.

other departments and public sector entities, including related bodies included in the
whole of government consolidated financial statements; and

d.

associates and joint ventures, that are included in the whole of government
consolidated financial statements.

Significant transactions with government related entities
Aqwest considers significant transactions to be those above $30,000. Significant
transactions include:

2018

2017

$

$

a) Compensation of directors
$0,000 - $10,000

5

-

$10,001 - $20,000

4

5

$20,001 - $30,000
Total Directors

1
9

6

79,663

87,500

8,365

9,188

Other long term benefits

-

-

Termination benefits

-

-

88,028

96,688

Short term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total compensation of directors

a.

dividend payment (Note 28a)

b) Compensation of senior officers

b.

income tax equivalent payment (Note 18)

c.

operating subsidy (Note 7a)

$10,001 - $20,000

1

-

d.

local government rate equivalent (Note 16a)

$160,001 - $170,000

1

1

e.

land tax (Note 16a)

$180,001 - $190,000

1

1

f.

Energy and Water Ombudsman charges (Note 16a)

$230,001 - $240,000

-

1

g.

payroll tax (Note 16a and Note 11)

h.

insurance (Note 14)

$240,001 - $250,000

1

-

Total number of senior officers

4

3

553,284

525,760

64,197

62,101

(21,114)

17,179

-

-

596,367

605,040

Material transactions with other related parties
Aqwest had no material related party transaction with Ministers/senior officers or their
close family members or their controlled (or jointly controlled) entities for disclosure.
Note 17c – Compensation of Key Management Personnel
Aqwest has determined that key management personnel include the responsible Minister,
board directors and senior officers of Aqwest. However, Aqwest is not obligated to
compensate the responsible Minister and therefore disclosures in relation to Ministers’
compensation may be found in the Annual Report on State Finances.
Total compensation for key management personnel, comprising directors and senior officers
of Aqwest for the reporting period are presented within the following bands:

Short term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long term benefits
Termination benefits
Total compensation of senior officers
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Note 17b – Related Party Transactions
Aqwest is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Western Australia. In
conducting its activities, Aqwest is required to pay various taxes and levies based on the
standard terms and conditions that apply to all tax and levy payers to the State and entities
related to State.
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2018

2017

$

$

1,431,348

1,815,037

(56,990)

(462)

17,353

(20,153)

1,391,711

1,794,422

Fair value adjustments to property, plant
and equipment

2,478,969

(345,195)

Income tax expense reported in equity

2,478,969

(345,195)

Note 18 – Income Tax
(a) Income tax expense
i) Current income tax:
Current income tax charge
Under/(over) provisions in prior periods
ii) Deferred income tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences
Income tax expense
(b) Amounts recognised directly in equity
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i) Deferred income tax:

(c) Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable
Profit before income tax equivalents

3,982,621

4,723,304

Tax at the statutory rate of 27.5%
(2017: 30%)

1,095,221

1,416,991

Under/(over) provisions in prior periods

(56,990)

(462)

Tax effects of amounts which are not
deductible in calculating taxable income

5,567

12,404

347,913

365,489

1,391,711

1,794,422

Temporary differences now brought to
account
Income tax expense reported in Statement
of Comprehensive Income
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Assets

Liabilities

Net

2018

2017

2018

2017

2018

2017

$

$

$

$

$

$

(d) Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
Fair value adjustments to property, plant and
equipment

-

-

11,800,591

9,325,493

11,800,591

9,325,493

Interest receivable

-

-

7,785

5,716

7,785

5,716

Deferred developer contributions

-

-

81,316

95,729

81,316

95,729

Employee entitlements

(241,694)

(275,262)

-

-

(241,694)

(275,262)

Tax (assets)/liabilities

(241,694)

(275,262)

11,889,692

9,426,938

11,647,998

9,151,676

241,694

275,262

(241,694)

(275,262)

-

-

-

-

11,647,998

9,151,676

11,647,998

9,151,676

Set off of tax
Net tax liabilities

Balance 1 July

Recognised in income

Recognised in equity

Balance 30 June

$

$

$

$

Fair value adjustments to property, plant and
equipment

9,325,493

(3,871)

2,478,969

11,800,591

5,716

2,069

-

7,785

95,729

(14,413)

-

81,316

Employee entitlements

(275,262)

33,568

-

(241,694)

Total movement

9,151,676

17,353

2,478,969

11,647,998

9,682,206

(11,518)

(345,195)

9,325,493

7,480

(1,764)

-

5,716

106,673

(10,944)

-

95,729

Employee entitlements

(279,335)

4,073

-

(275,262)

Total movement

9,517,024

(20,153)

(345,195)

9,151,676

Interest receivable
Deferred developer contributions

Movement in temporary differences during the year 2017:
Fair value adjustments to property, plant and
equipment
Interest receivable
Deferred developer contributions
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Movement in temporary differences during the year 2018:
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2018

2017

2018

2017

$

$

$

$

Note 19 – Other financial assets

Note 21 – Inventories

a) Current

Inventories held for distribution (at cost)

535,279

522,993

Held to maturity investments:

Total inventories

535,279

522,993

Operating account

-

-

Capital Reserve Account

5,225,790

5,275,000

a) Current

Total investments

5,225,790

5,275,000

Prepayments

120,492

119,488

Total other financial assets

5,225,790

5,275,000

Current tax asset

229,852

134,267

Total other assets current

350,344

253,755

Work in progress

2,114,901

420,039

Total other assets non-current

2,114,901

420,039

Note 20 – Receivables

Note 22 – Other assets

Current
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Trade debtors (a)

1,164,630

1,533,827

GST receivable

53,893

19,208

Sundry debtors

95,848

126,029

Accrued interest

28,310

19,054

Pensioner rate deferrals (b)

12,410

11,536

1,355,091

1,709,654

Total receivables

a) Trade debtors includes unbilled income.
b) D
 eferred rates are those that are owed by a property owner but legislation allows the owner to delay
payments until the property is sold.

b) Non-current

2018

2017

$

$

Note 23 – Property, plant and equipment

2018

2017

$

$

Services at cost

360,768

344,263

Land at fair value (a)

5,523,500

5,314,586

Accumulated depreciation

(50,121)

(33,646)

Total land

5,523,500

5,314,586

Total services

310,647

310,617

Buildings at fair value (a)

3,983,876

5,125,020

Plant and equipment at cost

1,912,442

1,912,442

Accumulated depreciation

(805,453)

(1,629,376)

Accumulated depreciation

(1,425,326)

(1,302,545)

Total buildings

3,178,423

3,495,644

Total plant and equipment

487,116

609,897

79,802,234

80,460,487

Motor vehicles at cost

730,303

735,827

(29,500,063)

(30,132,549)

(319,148)

(270,838)

Total mains

50,302,171

50,327,938

411,155

464,989

Treatment plants at fair value (a)

23,977,235

9,117,861

Office equipment at cost*

1,040,270

949,072

(12,282,744)

(4,778,221)

Accumulated depreciation

(860,499)

(799,763)

Total treatment plants

11,694,491

4,339,640

179,771

149,309

Reservoirs at fair value (a)

38,975,074

31,915,779

22,775

22,775

Accumulated depreciation

(14,555,978)

(11,760,521)

(20,406)

(19,813)

24,419,096

20,155,258

2,369

2,962

7,385,300

6,786,631

101,482,018

89,472,627

(2,412,021)

(2,484,844)

4,973,279

4,301,787

Mains at fair value (a)
Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated depreciation

Total reservoirs
Bores and pumps fair value(a)
Accumulated depreciation
Total bores and pumps

Accumulated depreciation
Total motor vehicles

Total office equipment
Tools at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total tools
Total property, plant and equipment

*Includes intangible assets of $27,379 (written down value, 2017 = $47,622).
(a) Assets were revalued at 30 June 2018 by Australia Asset Advisory Group. The valuations were performed
during the year ended 30 June 2018 and recognised at 30 June 2018. In undertaking the revaluation,
fair value was determined by reference to market values for Land: $5,523,500 (2017: $5,314,586) and
Buildings: $3,178,423 (2017: $3,495,644). For the remaining assets valued at fair value, the value was
determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and on the basis of comparison with market
evidence for assets with low level utility (high restricted use).
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a) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in the table below:

Carrying
amount at
start of year

Additions

Disposals

Transfers
between
categories

$

$

$

$

Revaluation
increments
(decrements)
to asset
revaluation
reserve

Revaluation
increments
(decrements)
to income
statement

$

$

Impairment
losses

Impairment
losses
reversed

$

$

Depreciation

$

Carrying
amount at
end of year

$

2018
Land at fair value

5,314,586

196,408

-

-

12,505

-

-

-

-

5,523,500

Buildings at fair value

3,495,644

18,106

-

-

(212,944)

-

-

-

(122,383)

3,178,423

50,327,938

1,095,523

-

-

(67,890)

-

-

-

(1,053,400)

50,302,171

4,339,640

176,467

-

-

7,427,684

-

-

-

(249,300)

11,694,491

20,155,258

-

-

-

4,871,456

-

-

-

(607,618)

24,419,096

4,301,787

-

-

-

897,448

-

-

-

(225,956)

4,973,279

Services at cost

310,617

16,505

-

-

-

-

-

-

(16,475)

310,647

Plant and equipment at cost

609,897

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(122,781)

487,116

Motor vehicles at cost

464,989

96,921

(57,163)

-

-

-

-

-

(93,593)

411,155

Office equipment at cost

149,309

91,198

-

-

-

-

-

-

(60,736)

179,771

2,962

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(593)

2,369

89,472,627

1,691,129

(57,163)

-

12,928,260

-

-

-

Mains at fair value
Treatment plants at fair value
Reservoirs at fair value
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Bores and pumps at fair value

Tools at cost
Totals

(2,552,835) 101,482,018
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Carrying
amount at
start of year

Additions

Disposals

Transfers
between
categories

$

$

$

$

Revaluation
increments
(decrements)
to asset
revaluation
reserve

Revaluation
increments
(decrements)
to income
statement

$

$

Impairment
losses

Impairment
losses
reversed

$

$

Depreciation

$

Carrying
amount at
end of year

$

Land at fair value

5,314,586

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,314,586

Buildings at fair value

3,617,865

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(122,221)

3,495,644

50,277,067

1,095,884

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,045,013)

50,327,938

4,461,442

135,309

-

-

-

-

-

-

(257,111)

4,339,640

18,717,754

2,014,870

-

-

-

-

-

-

(577,366)

20,155,258

4,439,549

86,266

-

-

-

-

-

-

(224,028)

4,301,787

Services at cost

237,446

87,457

-

-

-

-

-

-

(14,286)

310,617

Plant and equipment at cost

754,211

10,531

-

-

-

-

-

-

(154,845)

609,897

Motor vehicles at cost

404,076

295,942

(151,869)

-

-

-

-

-

(83,160)

464,989

Office equipment at cost

155,595

37,052

-

-

-

-

-

-

(43,338)

149,309

3,552

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(590)

2,962

88,383,143

3,763,311

(151,869)

-

-

-

-

-

(2,521,958)

89,472,627

Mains at fair value
Treatment plants at fair value
Reservoirs at fair value
Bores and pumps at fair value

Tools at cost
Totals
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b) Assets measured at fair value
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Fair Value

2018

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Fair Value

2017

Land at fair value

-

2,562,000

2,961,500

5,523,500

Land at fair value

-

2,770,000

2,544,586

5,314,586

Buildings at fair value

-

1,630,873

1,547,551

3,178,424

Buildings at fair value

-

1,559,766

1,935,878

3,495,644

Mains at fair value

-

-

50,302,171

50,302,171

Mains at fair value

-

-

50,327,938

50,327,938

Treatment plants at fair value

-

-

11,694,490

11,694,490

Treatment plants at fair value

-

-

4,339,640

4,339,640

Reservoirs at fair value

-

-

24,419,096

24,419,096

Reservoirs at fair value

-

-

20,155,258

20,155,258

Bores and pumps at fair value

-

-

4,973,279

4,973,279

Bores and pumps at fair value

-

-

4,301,787

4,301,787

Totals

-

4,192,873

95,898,087

100,090,960

Totals

-

4,329,766

83,605,087

87,934,853

After Asset Revaluation there was one transfer between level 3 and level 2, buildings and
improvements assessed on a Market Approach have utilised level 2 inputs to determine the Fair
Value for the assets on site. As such the Fair Value is deemed to be a level 2 on the AASB13
Fair Value Hierarchy, which applies to the Water Services Centre assets.
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Assets measured at fair value

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values
Level 2 fair values of Non- current assets held for sale, Land and Buildings (Office
Accommodation) are derived using the market approach. Market evidence of sales prices of
comparable land and buildings (office accommodation) in close proximity is used to determine
price per square metre.
Non-current assets held for sale have been written down to fair value less costs to sell. Fair
value has been determined by reference to market evidence of sales prices of comparable
assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
c) Fair Value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Fair Value at start of period

Land

Buildings

Treatment
plants

Mains

Bores and
pumps

Reservoirs

2,544,586

1,935,878

50,327,938

4,339,640

20,155,258

4,301,787

196,408

18,106

1,095,523

176,467

220,506

(335,508)

(67,890)

7,427,684

4,871,456

897,448

Transfers (from/(to) Level 2)

-

(30,333)

Transfers between categories

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

(40,592)

(1,053,400)

(249,300)

(607,618)

(225,956)

2,961,500

1,547,551

50,302,171

11,694,491

24,419,096

4,973,279

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss, under ‘Other Gains’

-

-

-

-

-

-

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets held at
the end of the reporting period.

-

-

-

-

-

-

Additions
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Profit or Loss
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

-

Depreciation Expense
Fair value at end of period

2017
Fair Value at start of period

Land

Buildings

Treatment
plants

Mains

Bores and
pumps

Reservoirs

2,544,586

1,987,803

50,277,067

4,461,442

18,717,754

4,439,549

Additions

-

-

1,095,884

135,309

2,014,870

86,266

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Profit or Loss

-

-

-

-

-

-

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfers (from/(to) Level 2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfers between categories

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation Expense

-

(51,925)

(1,045,013)

(257,111)

(577,366)

(224,028)

2,544,586

1,935,878

50,327,938

4,339,640

20,155,258

4,301,787

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss, under ‘Other Gains’

-

-

-

-

-

-

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets held at
the end of the reporting period.

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fair value at end of period
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d) Valuation Processes
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.
Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised in the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer. Transfers are generally limited to assets newly classified
as non-current assets held for sale as the Treasurer’s instructions require valuations of land,
buildings and infrastructure to be categorised within Level 3 where valuations will utilise
significant Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis.
Fair value for existing use specialised buildings and infrastructure assets is determined by
reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the
asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost.
Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired
economic benefit, or obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable) of the asset.

f) Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements

Description

Fair Value
2018
($000)

Fair Value
2017
($000)

Valuation
technique(s)

Unobservable inputs
Restriction of Use
Discount Selection
of Land with similar
approximate utility

Land

2,962

2,545

Market comparison
approach

For some specialised buildings and infrastructure assets, the current replacement cost is
determined by reference to the historical cost adjusted by relevant indices.

Buildings

1,548

1,936

Depreciated
Replacement Cost

Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of
sales of comparable land that is unrestricted less restoration costs to return the site to a vacant
and marketable condition (low restricted use land), or, comparison with market evidence for
land with low level utility (high restricted use land).

Consumed economic
benefit/obsolescence
of asset.

Mains

50,302

50,328

Depreciated
replacement cost

Consumed economic
benefit/obsolescence
of asset.

Treatment plants

11,694

4,340

Depreciated
replacement cost

Consumed economic
benefit/obsolescence
of asset.

Reservoirs

24,419

20,155

Depreciated
replacement cost

Consumed economic
benefit/obsolescence
of asset.

Bores and pumps

4,973

4,302

Depreciated
replacement cost

Consumed economic
benefit/obsolescence
of asset.

Current replacement cost is generally determined by reference to the market observable
replacement cost of a substitute asset of comparable utility and the gross project size
specifications.
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e) Basis of Valuation
In the absence of market-based evidence, due to the specialised nature of some non-financial
assets, these assets are valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis. The
existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have been placed on their use and
disposal when they are not determined to be surplus to requirements. These restrictions are
imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific community service and Aqwest’s
enabling legislation.

Significant Level 3 Inputs used by Aqwest are derived and evaluated as follows:
Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset
These are estimated by Australis Asset Advisory Group.
Selection of Land with restricted utility
Fair Value for restricted use land is determined by comparisons with Market evidence for land
with low level utility. Relevant comparators of land with low level utility are selected by Australis
Asset Advisory Group.

Reconciliations of opening and closing balances are provided in Note 23c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
2018

2017

$

$

Note 24 – Impairment of assets

Note 26 - Provisions

There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment, infrastructure
or intangible assets at 30 June 2018. Aqwest held no goodwill or intangible assets with
an indefinite useful life during the reporting period.

(a) Current

At the end of the reporting period, there were no intangible assets not yet available for
use.

229,609

242,627

Long service leave (b)

301,762

325,552

4,840

2,808

14,269

18,575

Personal leave (d)

180,788

154,482

Total employee benefits provisions current

731,268

744,044

Employment on costs (e)

69,626

74,546

Total current provisions

800,894

818,590

73,669

90,948

Employment on costs (e)

13,149

16,093

Total non-current provisions

86,818

107,041

Current

Time in lieu (c)
986,762

Accrued salaries and wages

49,173

40,047

Income in advance

34,802

33,517

1,105,598

1,060,326

a) Trade creditors include accrued expenses

Note 25b – Borrowings

(c) Non-current

Current
Accrued interest

(b) Other provisions:

1,196

1,409

Western Australian Treasury Corporation
(WATC) loan

61,796

59,520

Total borrowings current

62,992

60,929

Non current

(i) Employee benefits provisions:
Long service leave (b)
(ii) Other provisions:

Western Australian Treasury Corporation
(WATC) loan

271,733

333,528

Employment on-costs provision

Total borrowings non-current

271,733

333,528

Opening Balance

90,639

91,701

Additional / (reversal of) provisions
recognised

15,511

23,746

(23,375)

(24,808)

82,755

90,639

Payments / other sacrifices of economic
benefit
Closing Balance
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Total payables

$

Annual leave (a)
Rostered days off (c)

1,021,623

2017

$

(i) Employee benefits provisions:

Note 25a - Payables
Trade creditors (a)

2018
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2018

2017

2018

2017

$

$

$

$

Balance at start of period

6,016,761

6,218,648

Transfers to reserve

2,633,207

3,422,333

(3,026,482)

(3,624,220)

5,623,486

6,016,761

Balance at start of period

6,016,761

6,218,648

Transfers to reserve

2,633,207

3,422,333

a) A
 nnual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of liabilities will occur within 12 months
of the reporting period.
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b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as
follows:
Within 12 months of reporting period

52,560

58,310

More than 12 months after reporting
period

322,871

358,190

375,431

416,500

Note 28 – Equity
Aqwest maintains the following reserves:
(a) Cash reserves
Capital reserve

Transfers from reserve
Balance at end of period

c) Rostered days off and time in lieu liabilities have been classified as current as there is
no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur within 12
months of the reporting period.

Total cash reserves

d) Personal leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows

Transfers from reserve (a)

(3,026,482)

(3,624,220)

Balance at end of period

5,623,486

6,016,761

Balance at start of period

51,410,193

51,177,922

Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation

12,928,260

-

Tax effect of revaluation (increments)/
decrements

(2,489,805)

232,271

Balance at end of period

61,848,648

51,410,193

Total reserves

67,472,134

57,426,954

Within 12 months of reporting period

23,420

22,356

More than 12 months after reporting
period

157,368

132,126

180,788

154,482

e) T
 he settlement of annual leave, long service leave, rostered days off and time in
lieu liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on costs including workers’
compensation premiums and payroll tax. The provision is measured at the present
value of expected future payments. The associated expense is included in and costs
of services (note 13), administration expenses (note 14) and all other expenses (note
16).
Note 27 – Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

11,647,998

9,151,676

Total deferred tax liabilities

11,647,998

9,151,676

(b) Asset revaluation reserve
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2017

$

$

(c) Retained Earnings
Balance at Start of period

29,839,621

28,578,832

2,590,910

2,928,882

10,836

112,924

(2,633,207)

(3,422,333)

3,026,482

3,624,220

Dividends paid

(1,898,338)

(1,982,904)

Balance at end of period

30,936,304

29,839,621

Total Equity at end of period

98,408,438

87,266,575

Result for the period
Income/(expense) recognised directly in
equity (a)
Transfers to Reserves
Transfers from Reserves

a) Relates to tax effect on non-current assets which have depleted reserves and therefore recognised
directly in retained earnings.

Note 28a - Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid by Aqwest for the year 30 June
Final dividend payment for the prior year

1,898,338

1,982,904

Dividends not recognised at year end.
Since year end no dividend has yet been declared to be paid. The aggregate amount of
the proposed dividend expected to be paid by 31 December 2018 out of retained profits
at 30 June 2018 is $1.940 million, but not recognised as a liability at year end.
Note 29 – Financial instruments
Financial instruments held by Aqwest are cash and cash equivalents, receivables, held-tomaturity investments, payables, and WATC borrowings. Aqwest has limited exposure to
financial risks. Aqwest’s overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks
identified below.

(i) Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of Aqwest’s receivables defaulting on their
contractual obligations, resulting in a financial loss to Aqwest. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as shown in the table at note 29(c).
All debts pertaining to water sales are secured against the land to which debts relate.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that Aqwest’s’
exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk.
(ii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when Aqwest is unable to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. Aqwest is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course
of business. Aqwest’s objective is to maintain sufficient cash assets on hand to meet
its debts as and when they fall due, with flexibility available through the use of a bank
overdraft facility. Aqwest has sufficient financial assets and appropriate procedures to
manage cash flows by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are
available to meet its commitments.
(iii) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates
and interest rates will affect Aqwest’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments.
Aqwest does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price
risks (for example, equity securities or commodity price changes). Aqwest exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to short and long term cash
investments.
All of Aqwest’s investments are at fixed interest rates with varying maturity periods. The
risk is managed though portfolio diversification and variation in maturity dates. Portfolio
diversification is limited to investments with financial institutions with a Standard and
Poor’s credit rating of ‘A’ or greater.
All borrowings are with the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) and are
repayable at fixed rates with varying maturities. Other than as detailed in the interest
rate sensitivity analysis table at note 29(d), Aqwest is not exposed to interest rate risk
because the majority of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest
bearing and Aqwest has no borrowings other than WATC borrowings (fixed interest rate).
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(b) Categories of financial instruments
In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial
assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2018

2017

$

$

Cash and cash equivalents

1,321,048

1,144,597

Receivables (a)

1,301,198

1,690,446

Held to maturity investments

5,225,790

5,275,000

Total financial assests

7,848,036

8,110,043

Payables (b)

1,070,796

1,026,809

WATC loan

334,725

394,457

1,405,521

1,421,266

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

AQWEST ANNUAL REPORT 2018 I 70

Total financial liabilities

(a) T
 he amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
(statutory receivable).
(b) The amount of payables excludes income received in advance.
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(c) Financial instrument disclosures
(i) Credit risk
Aqwest’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below.
The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired, based on information provided to senior management of Aqwest.
Past due but not impaired

Ageing analysis of financial assets:

Carrying amount

Not past due
(current)

Not past due
(deferred) (b)

Less than one year

One year or more

$

$

$

$

$

2018
Cash and cash equivalents

1,321,048

-

-

-

-

Receivables (a)

1,301,198

1,081,572

12,410

74,145

133,071

Held to maturity investments

5,225,790

-

-

-

-

Totals

7,848,036

1,081,572

12,410

74,145

133,071

Cash and cash equivalents

1,144,597

-

-

-

-

Receivables (a)

1,690,446

1,512,465

11,536

113,487

52,958

Held to maturity investments

5,275,000

-

-

-

-

Totals

8,110,043

1,512,465

11,536

113,487

52,958

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (statutory receivable).
(b) Pensioners are not required to pay rates issues as they are billed.
The collection of such rates is ultimately deferred until the property changes ownership from the pensioner’s title.
These amounts are shown at note 20 ‘Receivables’ as non-current trade debtors.
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(ii) Liquidity risk and interest rate risk
The following table discloses Aqwest’s maximum exposure to interest rate risk and a contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities. The contractual maturity amounts in the table
are representative of the undiscounted amounts at the end of the reporting period. Adjustments for discounting have not been made due to immateriality. The interest rate exposure section
analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. Aqwest does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds. Aqwest does not hold any
financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them being past due. The maturity analysis section includes principal cash flows only.
Interest rate exposure
Weighted
average
interest rate

Carrying
amount

Variable
interest rate

%

$

$

Maturity date

Non-interest Fixed interest
bearing
rate
$

$

Up to 3
months

3 months to
12 months

1 – 2 years

More than

$

$

$

$

2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (a)
Held to maturity investments

1.4%

1,321,048

1,319,048

2,000

-

1,321,048

-

1,301,198

-

1,301,198

-

1,301,198

-

-

-

2.60%

5,225,790

-

-

5,225,790

4,215,790

1,010,000

-

-

7,848,036

1,319,048

1,303,198

5,225,790

6,838,036

1,010,000

-

-

334,725

-

-

334,725

15,232

46,564

64,159

208,770

1,070,796

-

1,070,796

-

1,070,796

-

-

-

1,405,521

-

1,070,796

334,725

1,086,028

46,564

64,159

208,770

1.40%

1,144,597

1,143,097

1,500

-

1,144,597

-

-

-

-

1,690,446

-

1,690,446

-

1,690,446

-

-

-

2.78%

5,275,000

-

-

5,275,000

-

5,275,000

-

-

8,110,043

1,143,097

1,691,946

5,275,000

2,835,043

5,275,000

-

-

394,457

-

-

394,457

14,671

44,849

61,796

273,141

Financial liabilities
WATC loan

3.77%
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Payables (b)

2017
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (a)
Held to maturity investments
Financial liabilities
WATC loan

3.77%

Payables (b)

-

1,026,809

-

1,026,809

-

1,026,809

-

-

-

1,421,266

-

1,026,809

394,457

1,041,480

44,849

61,796

273,141

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (statutory receivable).
(b) The amount of payables excludes income received in advance.
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(iii) Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of Aqwest’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for
a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.
- 1% change

+ 1 % change

Carrying amount

Profit

Equity

Profit

Equity

%

$

$

$

$

2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

1,319,048

(13,190)

(13,190)

13,190

13,190

Other financial assets

5,225,790

(52,258)

(52,258)

52,258

52,258

334,725

(3,347)

(3,347)

3,347

3,347

(68,795)

(68,795)

68,795

68,795

Financial liabilities
WATC Loan
Total increase/(decrease)
2017
Cash and cash equivalents

1,143,097

(11,431)

(11,431)

11,431

11,431

Other financial assets

5,275,000

(52,750)

(52,750)

52,750

52,750

394,457

(3,945)

(3,945)

3,945

3,945

(68,126)

(68,126)

68,126

68,126

Financial liabilities
WATC Loan
Total increase/(decrease)
d) Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable
approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
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Financial assets
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2018

2017

$

$

Note 30 – Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
(a) R
 econciliation of profit after income tax equivalent to net cash flows provided by /
(used in) operating activities:
Profit after income tax equivalents

2,590,910

2,928,882

Non cash items:
Depreciation

2,552,835

2,521,958

(Gain)/loss on disposal of non current
assets

(3,746)

(63,032)

Developer contributions

(4,834)

(397,764)

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
389,248

(547,917)

Inventories

(12,286)

18,608

(1,004)

533

55,528

51,777

213

206

(37,919)

(13,576)

1,391,711

1,794,422

15,875

18,082

(703,000)

(703,000)

Local government rate equivalent

78,956

71,055

Land tax

29,426

33,918

Net GST receipts/(payments)

(10,256)

(30,117)

Change in GST receivable/payable

(34,685)

12,940

6,296,972

5,696,975

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:

AQWEST ANNUAL REPORT 2018 I 74

Trade creditors and accruals
Finance Costs
Employee provisions
Other items:
Income tax equivalents
Finance costs
Operating subsidy

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating
activities

2017

$

$

(b) Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial period, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows, is
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
Current accounts
Working account

936,017

565,943

Capital Reserve Account

383,031

576,904

2,000

1,750

1,321,048

1,144,597

Floats
Total cash

Note 31 – Credit standby arrangements and loan facilities

Trade and other debtors
Prepayments

2018

(a) Credit standby arrangements
Aqwest’s bankers provide standby funds. A total of $1,000,000 is accessible by Aqwest.
The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and is subject to annual review.
At 30 June 2018, an aggregate amount of $1,000,000 remained unused.
(2017: $1,000,000 unused).
(b) Summary of loan facilities
Credit standby arrangement

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Note 32 – Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Office of the Auditor General (OAG), in respect of
the audit for the current financial year is as follows:
a) Auditing the accounts and financial
statements

38,800

38,150

38,800

38,150
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2018

2017

2018

2017

$

$

$

$

Note 33 – Non cancellable operating lease revenue

Note 35 – Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Aqwest holds long term operating leases with payments receivable annually for
telecommunications towers located on Aqwest facilities. The minimum lease payments
receivable are as follows:

As at 30 June 2018, there are no material contingent assets or liabilities to report.

Within 1 year

45,347

43,756

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

104,277

122,581

Later than 5 years

374,590

401,633

524,213

567,970

Note 36 – Subsequent events occurring after the reporting date
There have been no events subsequent to reporting date which would have a material
effect on Aqwest’s financial statements at 30 June 2018.

Note 34 – Commitments for expenditure

Within 1 year

181,892

149,215

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

178,609

4,983

360,501

154,598

(b) Capital expenditure commitments
Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the
amounts reported in the financial statements, are payable as follows:
a) Within 1 year

-

-

-

-

The capital commitments include amounts for:
a) Reservoirs
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(a) Operating expenditure commitments
Expenditure commitments, including information technology support, internal audit,
external audit, office cleaning and sanitary services, grounds maintenance and chlorine
supply, contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, are payable
as follows:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Auditor General
Auditor
General
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Parliament of Western
Australia
INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR'S REPORT

BUNBURY WATER CORPORATION
To the Parliament
Opinion

of Western Australia

I have audited the financial report of Bunbury Water Corporation (the Corporation), which
WATER
CORPORATION
comprises the Statement ofSUNBURY
Financial Position
as at 30 June
2018, the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies
Opinion
and other explanatory information, and the directors‘ declaration.

Responsibility of the Directors for the Financial Report
The directors of the Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
schedule 3 of the Water Corporations Act 1995. The directors’ responsibility also includes
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
a financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

I have audited the financial report of Sunbury WaterIn Corporation
(the Corporation), which
preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the
as atCorporation’s
30 June 2018,
Statement
of
ability to the
continue
as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters
related toand
going Statement
concern and using
the going
concernfor
basis
of accounting
unless the
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
of Cash
Flows
the
year
Western Australian Government has made policy or funding decisions affecting the
(a) giving a true and fair view of the Corporation’s financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of
then ended, and notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other
continued existence of the Corporation.
its performance for the year then ended; and
explanatory information, and the directors' declaration.

AQWEST ANNUAL REPORT 2018 I 76

In my opinion, the financialcomprises
report of Bunbury
Corporation
in accordancePosition
with
theWater
Statement
ofisFinancial
schedule 3 of the Water Corporations Act 1995 including:

(b) c omplying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report

Basis for Opinion

objectives of my
are to obtain reasonable
assurance about
In my opinion, the financial report of Sunbury WaterThe
Corporation
isaudit
in accordance
with schedule
3 ofwhether the financial
report as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
I conducted my audit in accordance
with the
Australian Auditing
My
Corporations
ActStandards.
1995 including:
the Water
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
level financial
of assurance,position
but is not aas
guarantee
an audit
conducted
(a)
giving
a
true
and
fair
view
of
the
Corporation's
at 30 that
June
2018
and ofin accordance with
for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report. I am independent of the
Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
its
performance
for
the
year
then
ended;
and
corporation in accordance with the Auditor General Act 2006 and the relevant ethical
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
requirements of the Accounting Professional
and Ethical
Standards
Board’s Accounting
APES 110 Code Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
(b) complying
with
Australian
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial
users taken on the basis of the financial report.
report. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. I
Basis
for
Opinion
believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional
basis for my opinion.
judgment
and maintain
professionalMy
scepticism
throughout the audit. I also:
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Australian
Auditing
Standards.
responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of my report. I am independent of the corporation in accordance with the
Auditor General Act 2006 and the relevant ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and
Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my auditor’s report.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that I identify during my audit.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report
This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of Bunbury Water Corporation for
the year ended 30 June 2018 included on the Corporation’s website. The Corporation’s
management is responsible for the integrity of the Corporation’s website. This audit does
not provide assurance on the integrity of the Corporation’s website. The auditor’s report
refers only to the financial report described above. It does not provide an opinion on any
other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these financial report. If
users of the financial report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication
on website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to
confirm the information contained in this website version of the financial report.
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•

5 MacKinnon Way,
Bunbury WA 6230
P: (08) 9780 9500
E: aqwest@aqwest.com.au
www.aqwest.com.au

OUR PURPOSE: To provide value to the owner and customer by providing locally managed water services.
OUR VISION: To be an independent water utility providing diversity and competition in the Western Australian water industry.

